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I'riends,

For some time now [’ve been hearing about
your publication and it’s just now that I've got-
ten it together with your address. I am an indi-
gent prisoner—that means poor as all fuck—at
F'olsom prison but I'm writing in the hope that
this will not prove to be an obstacle to my re-
ceiving a sub to your paper.

Love & Rage
Joe Remiro
B-66003

//,.) Represa, Ca.
can you dig this shit!

Comrats,

One note—The Omega House—in Manhat-
tan, Ohio has long been a stop-over for Rads,
Nobody has ever been ripped off until this one
pig assed dog shit hole kicking ass name Rick
Burger ripped $13. from Jeff. Jeff is making
$16.00 a week and Dayton has cut off his wel-
fare (General Relief). Rick was fed, given a
place to sleep, beer to drink, pot to smoke. He
knows Jeff’s economic condition and went
out of his way to find his lent money and take
it, leaving Jeff broke. If this fucked up asshole
ever is seen again he will be shot or stuffed in a
plastic bag with a pile of ragweed until he pass-
es out during one of his asthma attacks. He
claims to be a N.Y. yip who has been in K.C.—
He has passed threugh twice before. Namoids,
Vietnam Vets Against Weed—Winter Stalinist
Organization have come through here and never
ripped any of ‘the brothers at Omega, It took
this fucking swine—a Yip who ripped off a fel-
low Yip. Get his ass!!

Besides that
Peace
Pancho White
Dayton, Ohio

Hail to the Eternal Yip (Abbie)

I came & went to K.C. 1 was pleased to see
the fribes again in most of their former glory. I
know Yippie lives, but now in a different form.
If you were in K.C. you know what I mean,
where was FREE? Peel complained about his
$12 he spent on food. That'’s not FREE. I spent
$30 & Yippie House is now eating for FREE.
David Peel you can sure sing, but your not
FREE. You say Fuck Abbie, Fuck Jerry Rubin
& Fuck Heroin. I'll 2nd your Fuck Heroin
& maybe even Jerry, but I still believe Rubin
is Yippie. But Abbie! Abbie! How can you de-
nounce the speaker of the books of the spirit
of Free. Without his Freedom & push; both
you & I, David would be deep in the rice pad-
dies of Coo Mung. The FBI (FFuck & FFuck the
air they foul) has him (the most recent Nation-
al American Hero, next to mom & her Pie)
pinned under the Ground. Now you Feel, Peel
it’s safe to give him shit. If I thought I could (or
should) I'd split Yippie. But for the sake of
Solidarity & FREE. 1 won’t. Not ever.

Abbie is our. . . I don’t know what to call
him, but he’s it. For sure. Without him we'd
(me I know) would be dead, you all too, What
has come of FREE. So all I can say now is in
KC it was sheer People’s Freedom. I don’t want
to start any more divisions, I'm a YIPPIE!! to
the heart & soul. So all of you People in all of

the Tribes stay FREE.,
Love from

The Cat Face of K.C., “you know my name

look up my number” .

Pleasant Hill, Mo.

Dear Editor:

I am writing this letter as an agent of appeal
for correspondence, and my hopes are that you
will be kind enough to print it.

I am a male prisoner, incarcerated at the
London Correctional Institution in London,
Ohio. I am 35 years old, and 1 would like to
correspond with people for spiritual, moral, and
intellectual communication. 1 would like to
thank you in advance. | am,

Donald Evans No. 141975
P.0O. Box 69

London Ohio 43140 °

“The Yipster Times

Yapster Crimes:

We read the messages from that zany Toilet
Misproductions in your last two issues and we
turned into melba toast! The reason we are
writing is because we met members from Toilet
Misproductions at the Un-Democratic Conven-
tion, standing right next to the Yippie demon-
strators. I'm sure you must have seen them, but
didn’t know who they were! We later met with
Joan Fadreezick and Don or Phil Farina in their
Port-O-San in New Jersey. It was there that we
agreed to join forces with them. So now the
two groups have merged into Toilet Misproduc-
tions and Gertrude Wiener’s Floor.,

You've heard about Toilet Misproductions
from their letters, but you probably no little or
nothing about us, Gertrude Wiener's Floor.
We began in 1974 as a spin-off from Warensak,
an artist collective. Last year we ran Lord Argu
Poo for Mayor of Gamadastron, Utah. We then
came east.

Now that we’ve joined with Toilet Mispro-
ductions, the two groups will work on the non-
presidential Election. 2

Sweep the ceiling
Fred Trum
—New York, N.Y.

Dear: Y-I.P.

I'was wondering how the freaks were doing
trying to shake the dreary days of dope addic-
tion. Recently, after seeing the ficket of *76,
I’'ve been feeling like “involving myself in com-
munist guerrilla warfare eventually in the future
in California. I was wondering exactly how
many freaks had the same thing in mind. The
days look very dark and PPve been trying to re-
cover from a nervous breakdown from the sum-
mer of *75. Id like to be able to work this na-
tion out of the days of president Nixon. This
couniry has no sympathy for weak and oppress-
2d dndividuals. I've grown up with the Jewish
tradition and I'm burned out: from overwork,
debt and general frustration.

Love,
EK.
Alexandria, Va.

Dear Y.T.,

Hay how is you? I just got your latest issue
it was funky? Although I was stoned when I got
it it was still good why dont you hold a smoke
in in Georgia? Cause 1 love, I adore I cherish
pot!!!! There aint a damn thing rong with it! I
want Cheech & Chong for President. This coun-
iry needs more Yippies & hippies and more,
more pot why don’t some of your readers write
me cause I am a lonely person just me & my
grass come on write me about anything write
poems any thing but be sure to include 2 unused
13 cent stamps just write me brothers & sisters
every ware! I want people to look up to Jesus &
grass. I am 15 yrs. old and I love Jesus, pot,
Cheech & Chong, and kiss and life itself. Life is
good if ya can use it in good ways. Anyone
write me please any age, color just write I love
hippies & Yippies right on you funky people
Cadillacs are the best cars! Reefer I love you!

Love,
R, Grolski
Warm Spgs., GA. 31830

Dear Brothers and Sisters,

1 just heard on the radio that Yipster Bill
Mazelli was busted in Kansas City for “creating
A Public Disturbance’ because he gave a speech
with a loud-speaker outside the Republican

convention. This is an outrage! It’s a perfect ex- §

ample of how the government suppresses our
right of freedom of speech.

It looks like the government has succeeded
in brainwashing most Americans into believing
that we will always be free. America Wake up
now while you can, before it's too late or 1984
will be before 1984!

Sincerely yours in the struggle,
Jeffrey Waite

DuBois, Pa.

A Member of NORML

Dear Editors:

Re Pam Baumgard’s article on the CIA vs.
Feminists (Aug-Sept. *76 issue), I consider it
unwise to represent Betty Friedan as a source
of information on threats to the women’s
movement. Her real contributions notwith-
standing, Friedan has subjected many, many
sincere women who most helped her and the
cause of feminism, to mystified, innuendo-
spreading analysis similar to her current per-
spectives on the CIA; this is matter of public
record.

I opposed CIA involvement in the women’s
movement too, whether or not the women's
movement still contains any feminists. Howev-
er, I still find it hard to believe even the CIA—

- which, like other investigative agencies is a bur-

cauecracy run by men whose perversions have

been legendary, but documented—could under-

mine feminism as much as all the corrupting nu-

clear family politic and economic ignorance I

have witnessed among feminists who probably

meant well, but were naive, gullible and pan-

icky. :

Sincerely,

Susan Sands

New York, N.Y.

P.S. I worked in the feminist movement for 7
years, and am not an agent, :

Ed: You expect us to take yolir word for that?
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yipster times, !

check out the fancy hotel stationary on
which we are sending you this, our fourth cor=
respondence. we got this in omaha last vear,
but were not as lucky at the statler-hilton in
new york city during the un-democratic con-
vention. we noticed as we were using the new
york daily news for toilet paper that ben masel
et al were on page three. they were trying to
use the bathrooms of the crown centre hotel in
kansas city due to the inadequacy of the port-o-
sans in the park. we express our solidarity with
ben/yips and their frustrations concerning the
unbalanced distribution of toilets in this grand
ole nation.

this incident in kc was the final phlush! we
are calling for a nationwide boycott of pay-
toilets to begin immediately. instead of using’
the pay toilets, all abnormals, weirdos, and oth-
er sympathizers should rather shit in front of
the bathroom stalls and leave notes to the man-
agements in protest!

i

phlushing your way,
toilet mis-productions
Westchester, N.Y.

VAR ERE:

To Who Ever Reads This—

WHO ARE YOU. Who I am is Dan Golden
(ak.a. M. Rambler), 19 years old, U.S. citizen
number G6025259 (passport) or 540-70-5444
(8.8.) or 2062393 (driver’s license) or anyone
of another dozen or so, depending on which
computer you ask. | was reading the Aug, '76
issue of High Times, an cxcellent rag (also
blowing some fine Afghani boo) when I came
across an advertisement that caught my eve
(very few do) on how to be a “Yippie” for $6
and receive various other “Yippie” paraphenal-
ia for many bucks more.

WHAT IS GOING ON!!!

A guy named FREE (a.k,a. Abbic Hoffman,
George Meteskey) supposed co-founder (along
with Jerry Rubin, Paul Krassner and a couple
others) of the Y.I.P. and the Yippies (Yippees?)
back in the 60’s said “There never were any
Yippies and there never will be, It was a slogan
Yippie! and that exclamation point. It was the
biggest put-on of all time. If you believe Yip-
pies existed, you are nothing but sheep.” He
told us (and he, if anyone should know) that it
was all a myth and that anyone and everybody

«could be and isa Yippie—from Daley, and King

Dick, and even Rocky all the way up to heads
like me. But most important, he said that “Yip-
pie is FREE!” So what is this shit’about hav-
ing to pay $6 or more to become a card carry-
ing (or button wearing) YIPPIE???

You ean’t be really what you claim to be,

. because if there is such an organization of Yip-

pies, their first goal should be to share and abol-
ish money and give everything away FREE!!
This ad makes me think that you are just like
the capitalistic piggies who are at the helm of
the Good Ship “Amerika™. If you have info,
posters, flags, buttons, pot, love or anything
else to share, share it with your brothers and
sisters FOR FREE. YIPPIES IS FREE!! I
would really like to know who reads this (pass
it around) and mostly I'd like to hear any-
body’s views on any subject they like (drugs,
sex, violence, pigs, Yippies, nothing, anything,
etc....) Also be so kind as to send me anything
you can about important events, concerts, ral-
lies, or whatever if possible, My address is—
Dan Golden

Fam. Van Rees

Weiver 82A

Krommenie (Zaanstad)

Holland

Ed: It’s no secret that publishing a newspaper,

making flags, making buttons costs money.
Please free your head.

ACHTUNG! ATTENTION YIPSTER TIMES READERS.

Many people have been receiving Yipster Times for 2 years now without sending in an
additional $6 sub fee (special rates available for those who can’t afford $6). In order to keep
bringing you the news months before it happens we need money, honey. So fill out the sub
blank below and send in your cash, checks or money-orders.

IDENTIFICATION STATEMENT

YIPSTER TIMES

Oct. 1976

Published monthly except July and August
Volume 4, Number 7, Issue 21

36 dollars per year

9 Bleecker Street

NYC 10012 533-5028

APPLICATION TO MAIL AT SECOND CLASS RATES IN PENDING AT NEW YORK, NY
Staff: Dana, A.J., Craig, Harry, Aron, Katie, Art, Linda, Cisco, I'red

Yes, 1 want to subscribe
I'have enclosed S

name

renew my subscription

to Yipster Times.

address

telephone

social security number,

mother’s maiden name

names of pets

Wanna distribute Yipster Times in your area? Know any head shops that might cary it?
Bookstores? Wanna sell it at rock concerts, your school or in the hip area of town? Write
AJ Weberman, Circulation Manager, immediately.




Dhotos by John Gurney

Splat!!! Aron Kay mooshes the gushy, gooey pie into fat Pat’s puss.

The Yipster Times

Taken éfter Aron fled the scee, fat Pat no sporting his new

stage-make-up, is wondering whether he was part and parcel

of an assassination plot.

R e R

Fat Pat is wiping the sloppy Halloween mask off his brow. However, he lives to see anotner day of pie-in-the-sky. To paraphrase Mao: Let a thousand pies fly!

Moynihan Meets a Pieman

_by Katie The Kid Clyde

It was an easy matter
of hefting it into the man’s face. Daniel
Patrick Moynihan left Hell’s Kitchen,
NYC, for a spot as front man with the
CIA carrying titles like Harvard Professor
and American Ambassador to the United
Nations. Mr. Moynihan is one of the For-
eign Policy Establishment’s Top Toads.
His work at the UN (uncensored fiction)
includes a lipsync charade to woo NYC’S
Jewish-block vote while his Mideast poli-
¢y remains that of the Rockefeller/Kissin-
ger twins. The “replacement” toad at the
UN., Scranton, is another Rocky fiend.
Who in Hell is FAT PAT kidding? :

The aboyve in itself is sufficient
cause to smack him with sugar, chemical
starch and caffeine (i.e., mocha cream
pie) but more, the action was a precise
announcement about that mess: Ameri-
can electoral politics. The pie was soft
and Iukewarm when it floated out of the
hands of Aron PIE KILL AGENT Kay
and into Moynihan’s face. He sputtered
and siood shocked. Applause quickly

ourst out around Moynjhan and again he
lost composure. It fell onto his shirt and
he began wiping it from his face and into
his hair. He tasted the goop as it sat on

board cigarette ads commented, *“It
tastes good.” But will he return to the
Lower East Side for another taste? Would
he’ have preferred another flavor? His
mouth needs to be filled so he can’t use
it to talk.

Moynihan has been a CIA creep
since he became a Trustee at Woodrow

Wilson International Center for Scholars-

in - Washington’s Smithsonian Institution
Building working with other men of
closed-door mentality and pass-the-buck
style. William J. Baroody at Wilson’s In-
stitute is a Moynihan associate who con-
sorts with the renowned Gerald Ford,

_Hugh Scott and personnel from the

Hoover Institute on War, Peace and
Révolution.

James Schlesinger, Alexander Solz-
henitsyn and other avid reactionaries are

el S B I B B SE W PR O R

members of Hoover Institute and Robert
“I was just following orders” Bork is at

+ Wilson Institute with H. Kissinger, Nix-

* on’s Paul McCracken and others of Rock-
his nose and like a model off the big bill-

et J. Squirrel’s Trilateral Commission.

Moynihan the Toad also represents
the CIA at AIFLD (American Institute
for Free Labor Development). AIFLD,
allied with ITT, The Council for Latin
America, Sinclair. Qil, International Min-
ing Corporation of America, General
Foods, Chase Manhattan Bank and John-
son and Johnson (among others) arranged
the merchant strike in Chile that led to
the right wing coup. -

it is clear, then, that the CIA man-
ipulates Big Blondie Moynihan.

Kay and associate Yippies knew
Moynihan’s record when they hatched the
pie-kill plot. Kay was temporarily detain-
ed after throwjng the pie but Moynihan
refused to press charges on the bagis that
he would wind up looking liké an idiot
in court. John Gurney took photos of the
“kill” in several stages. Afterwards, he
and Aron then sped off in a cab to Asso-

ciated Press who bought a prime siot ot
Aron’s arm on one side of the weapon
and Moynihan’s face in the other. NBC
News ran a film of the pieing in major
cities across the country: a local inter-
view with Aron was shown in New York,
front page copy and the contact photo
appeared in numerous papers, With
several other countries picking it up and
special write-ups in such publications as
Newsweek, this incident must come to be
known as the PIE.KKILL SEEN AROUND
THE WORLD! IT IS THE GREATEST
POLITICAL PIEING IN U.S. ECONOM-
IC HISTORY (AND WESTERN CIVILI-
ZATION!!!!h

Did he deserve it? Did he get what
he deserved? I would have asked him my-
self if he’d stayed around long emough
but it looked like Patrick wanted to shake
a few hands and get out of the area. The
spectacle was probably too much for him.

Moynihan eventually won his nom-
ination, while Aron received ‘approxi-
mately 10,000 telegrams, running 5 to 1
in support of the pie-kill.
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- troopers, a man, Joseph Aceto, 23, was

- R g I —

Yip

On the East Coast, YIPs pulled
off actions against- Korean CIA Rev.
Sun Myung Moon 2 Saturdays in a
row. The first, in New York—outside the
hotel where several Moonie recruits have
fallen (or been pushed) to their death—
was something of a bust (see pic).

The second Saturday, Sept. 18,
garnered publicity far beyond the expec-
tations of the Washington, D.C. organiz-
ers. Stories in the D.C. papers used the
presence of Yippie Counterdemonstrators
at Moon’s last big rally this year as’a peg
to bring up charges that Moon is a front
for the U.S. and Korean ClAs. Apparent-

uerrilla

The guerilla underground has final-
ly emerged as a significant and tenacious
force outside the West Coast and the met-
ropolitan East—in, of all places, well-bred

Yankee New England.

Despite a virtual media black-out,

| it’s been a long hot bizarre and eventful

summer north of Connecticut. And there
are no signs of letting up.
' A spate of bombings since April
have been linked to two underground
groups, the Melville-Jackson Unit (which
may be linked with San Francisco’s New
World Liberation Front), and the Fred
Hampton Unit, the former evidently lo-
cated in the Boston (Mass.) area and the
latter in Maine.

Possibly they are one and the same

| or they work together.

The Melville-Jackson Unit surfaced
in April with an early-morning bombing
of the Suffolk County Courthouse in Bos-
ton, injuring 22 people. A communique
demanded prison reforms.

The Fred Hampton Unit surfaced

a month later with a like-styled bombing .

of a Maine power company, demanding
reduced utility rates. ;

In the next eight weeks there were
bombings of an Eastern airliner at Logan
Airport (Boston), a National Guard
Armory (Boston), Newburyport Superior
Courthouse and a Seabrook, N.H. post
office (nuclear power site).

Then,-on July 4 weekend, events
began to snowball.

After a high-speed chase by state

Yippies land on Moon
inNew Yorkand D.C.

ly even the STAR and the POST can’t

The Yi'_pstef Times

stomach foreign mercenaries hired to sing
“God Bless America”.

Yippies also benefited from the
backlash against the Moonies push-
ing their rally. As 25000, predom-
inantly third-world people bused in
from the ghettos of Richmond, Bal-
timore, Philly and Pittsburg were gather-
ing on the West Side of the Washington
Monument, 500 Y!IPs were toking up on
the mall a couple of blocks to the East. A
heavy line of cops was intent on keeping
any organized parade from invading the
Moonie rally.

Determined to do something, just
after 6:00 PM organizers _}3351 the YIPs

B

arrested near Topsfield (Mass.) in a car
filled with explosives.

Police swiftly nabbed another man
in Portland, Maine—Everett Carlson, 38—
and a woman charged only with possess-
ing a stolen typewriter.

An intensive manhunt was launched
for two other men—Richard Picariello
and Edward Gullion—said by police to
have been dropped off by Aceto, en
route to bombing Polaroid Corp. and the
regional headquarters of the A & P Com-
pany.

Hundreds of state and federal cops
combed the Topfield woods for days, tot-
ing rifles, but they were unable to find ei-
ther of the two suspects, both of whom
were raised in the labyrinthine woodlands
of the area.

The FBI publicly speculated that
Picariello (who was swiftly dubbed “lead-
er” of the group and nominated to the
‘FBI’s Top Ten Most Wanted) & Gullion
were aided by an “underground organiza-
tion” in their escape.

Also, the FBI complained, lifelong
friends in the area probably rendered
aid and comfort to the fugitives.

Both men, the FBI announced, evi-
dently escaped to Canada.

All four suspects—the FBI further
alleged—were ex-inmates, members of
SCAR, a Maine prison reform organiza-
tion. According to police, explosives and
literature relating to both the Hampton
and Melville-Jackson Units were found.

Monument.

_Master’s sight,

nfiltrate in small groups up to the
The only problem, once
here, was that the counter-demonstrators
ould never really find each other in the
hrong. :

Perhaps 150 hecklers were able
o get close to the stage, but circulating
hru-out the Moonie rally were many lost

freex “looking for the smoke-In.”

As Moon started to spiel, the heck-
lers who were bearing a banner reading
“Moon is a CIA Goon™ and resisting the
best efforts of Moon’s minions to tear it
down, started chanting and screaming
without a let-up. Fistfights ensued as
Yippies tore down the flags Moonies were
using to block the Yippies from the

L O

In other developments, Katie Yippie,
Hlah, and Sleazy John of New York, added
a touch or civil disobedience to the

< = protests  outside the first presidential
- * ¥ debate when the Yippie bus arrived late,
i Two of the four arrested at the anti-Moon smoke-out in NYC, these two for toking at
the fringe of the crowd.

movemen

to find most of the other demonstrators

And—most intriguingly—police said
they had the four suspects under surveil-
lance since the Maine power company
bombing, supposedly because on-the-
scene witnesses identified them to a
local FBI agent.

Meanwhile, Aceto, who first phon-
ed Nancy Gertner (Susan Saxe's lawyer)
and then refused to see her, began singing
to the cops in exchange for leniency.

Two grand juries quickly convened,"
one in Boston and one in Portland.

As many as twelve “blind warrants”
in the case weré secretly issued by the
two grand juries, thanks to Aceto, includ-
ing warrants against an un-named “Re-
vere (Mass.) woman” and a man who
planned the Suffolk blast.

Aceto’s testimony was conveniently
leaked to the local press. As many as
three underground guerilla organizations,
according to Aceto’s story, were operat-
ing in alliance between Portland and
Boston— all militant refugees from the
prison reform organization who broke
and went underground months ago.

Aceto and Carlson (who refused to
speak or stand up at his hearing) were ar-
raigned and it looked as if the brief fiery
New England chapter of the burgeoning
underground war was temporarily kaput.

Then, in the space of a month, a
Boston area bank was bombed—and a
communique issued by the Melville-
Jackson Unit, demanding Puerto Rican
independence.

Then, blasting caps disappeared

Smoke-Out Rev. Moon, Saturday, September 11 1976 NYC

‘gone home and Rlzzos redsquad out in
force.

After surrounding the YIPs so
that their pro-abortion and Nobody
for President signs couldn’t be seen,
the redsquaders picked off Sleazy John
and Ilah for having a Yippie flag. Then
they jumped Katie for yelling at them,
beating her to the ground and giving the
UPI photographer the aforementioned
shot. :

Katie got the only serious charge,
assault on a cop, which is still pending.

As October rolls along, many other

Nobody for President rallies and Smoke-
ins are planned by local Yippie groups.

These are being coordinated in many

places with regional Yippie meetings to
mobilize folks for the big anti-repression
rally at the Inhoguration at D.C. on
Jan. 20. An East Coast Regional confer-
ence is planned immediately after the
Teach-in on Assassination Cover-up Nov.
22, the thirteenth anniversary of the
murder of JFK. Photos by Craig Silverman

t ignites in New England aresz

from a Vermont quarry. Armories were §

burglarized in Mass. and N.H. And, mys-
teriously (unclaimed by any group), the
home of a former prison guard in Maine
was blown up.

Then the most audacious act since
Patty Hearst’s hapless kidnapping. Two
men pointed a shotgun at the head of
Polaroid President Wm. J. McCune as he
walked to his car in the company parking
lot in Waltham (Mass) attempting to
abduct him.

McCune fought back and was slug-
ged to the ground. The two men jumped

into a waiting van and careened over two

“speed bumps” and escaped.

Police and the victim have identi-
fied the two men as—yes, you guessed it—
the never-say-die Picariello -and Gullion,
supposedly long gone and frightened
away to Canada by hordes of cops.

It begins to look as though New
England police have a problem on their
hands of revolutionary consequence.

These events are particularly impoz-
tant because the people allegedly involved
are working-class ex-prisoners from New

England who were jailed for various arm- §

ed robberies. They became politicized—
not in some dainty college—behind bars.

Their communiques are coherent
and wisely geared toward a variety of
issues (reduced power rates, prison re-
form etec.) with a popular base.

They appear to be indigenous and.]

not San Francisco exports.

This, of course, is what really wor- |

ries the EBI .
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TheRed

by Jonah Raskin

It was June eighth, California Pri-
mary Day. Eldridge Cleaver was a prison-
er in the Alameda County Jail and by law
prohibited from voting. Downstairs in the
Alameda County Courthouse citizens
were choosing Ronald Reagan and John
Tunney over President Ford and Cleaver’s
former comrade Tom Hayden. I handed
the cop my passport and allowed him to
search me. Then I walked down the corri-
dor and peered through the plate glass
window. Sitting in a chair legs extended
was Eldridge Cleaver. [ hadn’t seen him in
six years. He stood up came to the win-
dow and nodded. We were separated by
walls and bars and could only communi-
cate by phone. I set the tone of our con-
versation with my opening question.

“There’s talk about you co-operat-
ing with the government,” I shouted. *“Is
it true?” Cleaver opened his palm and
waved his arm expansively, “Do I look
like a man who has made a deal?” he ask-
ed as though my question was as ridicu-
lous as the large, white coveralls he was
wearing. I've seen dozens of men who

_have plea bargained with district attorn-

eys, but T don’t know what a man who
has made a deal looks like. I do know
that the Eldridge Cleaver in Alameda
County Jail didn’t look like the Eldridge
Cleaver 1 had known. Look at the picture
of Cleaver on the cover of Soul on Ice
and compare it with a photo of him to-
day and I think you’ll see what I mean.
The Cleaver of the past—despite the talk
of bullets and blood—has a look of com-
passion and tenderness. The Cleaver of
today—despite the insistence that “‘we
must have love between people” has a
look of hardness and cynicism,

“You claim that the US is the most
democratic country in the world,” 1
said. “You've travelled in Cuba, China,
Algeria, North Korea but the only coun-
try that has locked you in prison is the
US. That seems like a contradiction,”
“It’s no contradiction,” Cleaver said.
“Prisoners in the US are treated well
when compared with prisoners in other
countries.” I looked skeptical. “The US
has been as profoundly changed as Portu-
gal.” he told me. “Reagan isn’t governor,
Nixon isn’t president; the potential for
the growth of our democratic institutions
is greater than ever before. Our freedom
of the press and our individual liberty
exist nowhere else in the world,”

On November 16, 1975 Cleaver left
Paris and returned to the US. I watched
his arrival on TV. No crowd was on hand
to welcome him; he flashed no defiant
black power salute. Cleaver walked down
the ramp; he wore sun glasses, a jacket,
and carried an attache case. In a prear-
ranged ceremony he surrendered to FBI
agents and was flown to California. In a
gesture rarely if ever extended to fugitives
Cleaver wasn’t handcuffed. He was treat-
ed with respect and dignity.

In Oakland now he is awaiting trial
on charges stemming from a shoot-out
with the police two days after Martin
Luther King was assassinated in April
1968. Cleaver described that heated bat-
tle in an essay collected in his second
book Post-Prison Writings. I asked Cleaver
if his description of the incident was ac-
curate. “Yes,” he said, but he was quick
to add “Now we know a lot more about
FBI attempts to destroy the Black Pan-
ther Party. They had me pegged for assas-
sination too. We’ll bring that out at the
trial.” These comments, eritical of the
government, were unusual. For the most
part Cleaver praised the American politi-
cal system,
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“There’s talk about you co-operating
with the government; | shouted.
Cleaver opened his hand and
waved his arm expansively.
"Do | look like @ man who has

made a deal?

(ZNS) In an odd political mixture,
former Ambassador to the United Na-
tions Daniel Patrick Moynihan, reports
that he was one of the contributors to El-
dridge Cleaver’s defense fund.

Cleaver spent the early 1970’ in
exile in Algeria and France after fleeing
California from a 1968 gunbattle between
Qakland police and the Black Panthers.
The former Black Panther leader

was released on $100,000 (dollars) bail
last week. Moynihan says he gave money
to the fund because Cleaver came back to
the country voluntarily, and (quote) “I
just thought he needed a lawyer”.

In the Spring of 1968 the Black
Panther Party was running candidates
for office. Huey Newton, the Party’s
Minister of Defense, was a candidate
for Congress from the district now repre-
sented by Ron Dellums. One evening

Cleaver and several other Panthers were

driving home after a long day of cam-
paigning. In his written account Cleaver
tells us that he had a great urge to urin-
ate. He stopped the car got out and start-

ed to pee in the street, but he was soon _

blinded by bright lights. Painful as it was,
he stopped peeing and moved behind the
car for privacy. Suddenly shots broke the
stillness of the street; Cleaver and 17-
year-old Bobby Hutton ran for cover and
hid in a house with paper thin walls. A
gun battle raged for an hour and a half.

When Bobby Hutton crawled out of
the basement to surrender the police shot
him dead. Hoping they would spare his
life, Cleaver stripped naked and emerged
meekly hands raised. That night he was

booked on three counts each of attempt-
ed murder and assault on police officers.
Though he was already on parole from
"San Quentin, a judge allowed friends to
post bail. Cleaver was a national figure;
he was a Ramparts reporter, a candidate
for the Presidency on the Peace and Free-
dom Party ticket, and ‘Minister of Infor-
mation for the Black Panther Party. For
seven months—until the courts ordered
him back to jail—Cleaver was.a free man.
Then, fearing for his life, he jumped bail
and disappeared. He was at the height of
his popularity. I still have a poster of him
from those days. He is smoking a cigar-
ette; there’s an earring in his left ear and
the poster reads “Eldridge Welcome
Here.”

In the Alameda County Jail I told
him “I didn’t expect to see you back
here under these conditions.” “There was
no other way of coming back,” he said.
“I tried and no one wanted to help.” The
last time I saw Cleaver was in the Black

Panther Embassy in Algiers. It was Octo-
ber 1970 2nd he had given sanctuary to
Tim Leary. I was a member of a small
delegation that included Stew Albert,
Jennifer Dohrn, Martin Kenner, Anita
Hoffman, and Brian Flanigan. Together
with Leary and Cleaver we hoped to form
an organization that would fuse the drug
and the counter cultures with the anti-
war movement and third world liberation.
However, with the exception of a cordial
meeting with the Provisional Revolution-
ary Government of South Viet Nam, the
Algiers incident was a fiasco. From the
start there were too many competing egos
and too many conflicting ideas. Tim
Leary spoke of the liberating force of
acid and Eldridge Cleaver placed his
hopes on the national liberation forces.

Before we returned home Cleaver
promised that he would be back in
“Babylon’ as he then called the US. We
did not discuss the details of his home-

(continued on next page)
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coming, but I assumed that he would re-
turn, as he had departed, via the under-
ground and that he would engage in clan-
destine activity. Everything about him—
from the talk of guns to the AK-47 he
cradled in his lap—indicated that this
would be his course of action. For several
years | expected to hear Cleaver’s knock
on my door in the middle of the night. I
was not overjoyed at the prospect of hid-
ing Eldridge in my attic, but I could not
imagine saying “no” and turning him
away. There were obvious dangers but I
felt comradely to a man who had helped
to spark not only my political growth but
the political growth of a generation.
“There is in America today a generation
of white youth that is truly worthy of the
black man’s respect, and this is a rare
event in the foul annals of American his-
tory,” Cleaver told us in 1968 at a time
when most black radicals were dismissing
whites. Since he had invited us to step in-
side history I felt that I ought to recipro-
cate by inviting him to step inside my
home.

By us I mean mostly white, male
youth because, although Eldridge was
never wanting for female companions, the
women’s movement was not enamoured
of him, For a start he was a self-confessed
rapist and notorious for inviting women
to crawl into his bed. Influenced by Nor-
man Mailer’s sexual politics, Cleaver be-
lieved that the black man’s body, specif-
ically his genitals, was a weapon in the
class/race war. Like Mailer, Cleaver saw
his penis as an “avenger.” In 1968 he sug-
gested that the role of women was to
exercise their “pussy power” to deny sex
to men who supported the war and op-
pressed blacks. Naturally women were an-
gered and he was booed by audiences for
these remarks. In Algiers Cleaver's Bel-
gian-born-mistress Malaka was a source of
much irritation, His wife Kathleen and his
mistress Malaka almost scratched out
each other’s eyes and hair one day.

Today the (Cleavers are posing as a
loyal, loving couple. Together they are
facing a hostile world and they are trying
to drum up support on both sides of the
political ~ fence. They need money,
friends, and a good lawyer. Cleaver’s init-
ial attorney of record in the case—George
V. Higgins, author of The Friends of Ed-
die Coyle—dropped the case because he
and Cleaver could not agree on trial tact-
ics. Cleaver shot off at the mouth and
Higgins was unhappy with so cocky and
headstrong a client.

Depending on their audience, the
Cleavers vary their pitch. In April Kath-
leen appeared at a San Francisco rally for
Dennis Banks and read a statement from
her husband condemning the treatment
of Native Americans. But on the Women’s
Page of The Chronicle Mrs, Kathleen
Cleaver chatted about her dear children
and her precious marriage. In a recent in-
terview on KPFA she portrayed her hus-
band as the archetypical “Man without a
Country.” Eldridge also looks for sympa-
thy on the basis of his seven years in ex-
ile. “I thought that I would never be able
to come home, and that made me very
very sad,” he told me. “It was painful to
see my children grow up French. I want
them to grow up American.” Cleaver is
trying to color himself the ultimate black
victim—persecuted by the FBI, denounc-
ed as a traitor by his former comrades in
the Black Panther Party, driven merciless-
ly from continent to continent by the
KGB and other assorted secret agents, till
he had no option but to return to Oak-
land.

But there is much more at stake
here than an innocent victim or an ordin-
ary black man. Cleaver’s homecoming is
not an apolitical event but the inaugura-
tion of a new political career. Soul is not
back on ice in Oakland; soul is dead.

Cleaver the firebrand, the gadfly is no
more and Cleaver the renegade is born.

Eldridge Cleaver has turned into his
opposite. The Eldridge who once com-
plained that he was prohibited from read-
ing Norman Mailer’s An American Dream
in San Quentin now praises the American
prison system as superior to any in the
world. The Eldridge who satirized J. Ed-
gar Hoover as “America’s Flattest Foot”
has kind words today for Anierican law
enforcement officials, In April he told the
press “I commend the US Department of
Justice, particularly Judge Harold Tyler,
Deputy Attorney General, who took per-
sonal charge of the arrangements for my
return from Paris to the State of Califor-
nia, for the respectful and professional
manner in which I was treated as long as
I was in his hands.” The Eldridge who
called our attention to the plight of the
Palestinian people now denounces the
Arabs as “racists,” defends Israel and
says that “the Jewish people have done
more than any other to end inequality
and prejudice.” The Cleaver who de-
nounced the role of the US military in
Viet Nam now claims that “the US
should be second to none militarily.”
The Cleaver who exposed the duplicity
of our UN representatives chides Moyni-
han for not being aggressive enough. The
Cleaver who called himself a Marxist says
that Marxist ideology is bankrupt. The
Eldridge who prayed for the coming of an
American Mao now says that “Mao be-
trayed national liberation movements
around the world.” Remember the photo
of Nixon shaking hands with Mao? Cleay-
er told me that when he saw it his “mind

helped the CIA track down Che Guevara
in Bolivia. Suddenly space was available
to Cleaver in newspapers and magazines
that had long kept him at bay. The New
York Times featured him on the Op-Ed
page; in May Newsweek invited him to
contribute to its “My Turn” column.

I asked Cleaver about this article.
“I defend it 100 per cent,” he said.
“There is no left wing publication to
write for. They’ve all folded. But News-
week is still there. They didn’t censor
what I wrote. I was given complete free-
dom.” In his “My Turn” column in
Newsweek Cleaver blasted the “White
racist Castro dictatorship™ and labeled it
“more insidious and dangerous for black
people than the white racist regime of
South Africa.” Coming at a time when
Cuban troops aided the Angolian people
in their war for independence, and when
South African police massacred hun-
dreds of young black demonstrators
Cleaver’s comments were a blatant distor-
tion of African realities. And they were
recognized as such by many black Ameri-
cans. Lennox S. Hinds, Director of the
National Conference of Black Lawyers,
charged that Cleaver’s statements were
made “to win favorable consideration by
the State authorities in California.” Hinds
went on to say that “the Cuban govern-
ment has taken the necessary steps to
eliminate racism; what little is left are
residual aspects of it.”

As best as I can determine, Eldridge
Cleaver has not testified before Senator
James Eastland’s Subcommittee on In-
ternal Security as Elaine Brown of the
Black Panther Party charged. I conferred

Eldriage Cleaver has turned into his
opposite. Soul is not back onice in.

Oakland; soul is dead.

was blown. it was the ultimate betrayal.”
He took it as a personal affront; since
then he has been on a rampage against the
communist world.

Perhaps Cleaver would recognize
himself if he read Soul on Ice. In the
chapter “Notes on a Native Son” he
wrote “In this land of dichotomies and
disunited opposites, those truly concern-
ed with the resurrection of black Ameri-
cans have had eternally to deal with black
intellectuals who have become their own
opposites, taking on all the behavior pat-
terns of their enemy....The intellectual
sycophant does not pretend to be other
than he actually is, but hates what he is
and seeks to redefine himself in the image

.of his white idols....A self-willed, auto-

mated slave, he becomes the white man’s
most valuable tool in oppressing other
blacks.” Here in a nut shell is Eldridge
Cleaver on Eldridge Cleaver.

Cleaver’s changes were heralded
long before he arrived in Qakland. From
Paris he launched a shrewd media cam-
paign. Last summer he placed ads in
French papers inviting investors to join
him in manufacturing men’s trousers; it
was rumoured that the trousers would
feature codpieces and would accentuate
the male genitals. For a few weeks we en-
joyed the joke, but soon the humour
took a deadly serious turn. Cleaver’s first
salvo from Paris was an interview in Roll-
ing Stone; Cleaver tossed off lightly, with-
ont backing his charge, that Fidel Castro

with Congressman Ron Dellum’s office
on this matter; they investigated the ru-
mours but could not substantiate them. It
appears that Cleaver has not provided the
FBI with the names of radicals. His bat-
tleground is not a Senate chamber but the
ideological sphere. He has become a pro-
fessional anti-communist intellectual.
Cleaver’s credentials are impeccable; he
can pose as a veteran who has seen the
Communists operate from the inside.

I asked Cleaver if his disillusion-
ment was akin to the disillusionment of
Thirties Communists like Richard Wright.
“I don’t think so,” Cleaver told me. “In
those days only Stalin was rejected. To-
day we can see that it isn’t a man but a
whole system.” Cleaver’s career parallels
Wright’s in several respects; both were
radicals and writers and both were disillu-
sioned and lived in exile in Paris where
- they made contact with French existen-
tialsim. Both began as firebrands and be-
came moderates. In the Sixties Richard
Wright, the angry black author of Native
Son, was Cleaver’s hero. Now Cleaver ad-
mires the Wright who described his disil-
lusionment with Communism in the vol-
ume The God that Failed. But Wright was
largely a literary figure and had much less
‘political standing than Cleaver. Wright’s
pronouncements on Russia and Ameri-
ean Communists didn’t carry the weight
of Cleaver’s writings in Rolling Stone,
Newsweek, and The New York Times.

“From every corner Marxist-Leninisi
thought has been discredited,” Cleaver
told me. “It is universally bankrupt, from
Moscow to Peking to Havana.” For El-
dridge Cleaver all the gods have failed.

Like the anti-communist crusaders
of the Fifties, Cleaver is not content to
denounce the beast abroad. He must
also roost him from his den at home. Ac-
cordingly, Cleaver has pointed to the
agents of the international communist
conspiracy in the California Democratic
Party, and in the Oakland Black Panther
Party. In April in an open leiter to the
press he charged the existence of “an in-
sidious conspiracy” against him that in-
cluded “certain black politicians” and
“members of Governor Jerry Brown’s
staff in Sacramento.” He claimed that
Huey Newton, now living in exile in
Cuba, is financed by the Palestinian Lib-
eration Organization, that the Oakland
Black Panther Party *“‘takes orders from
Huey Newton in Havana.” He added that
Ron Dellums is part of the conspiracy;
he is sheltering known foreign agents in

-his Congressional district. On the subject

of Ron Dellums Cleaver is vicious, He
told me that Dellums is “‘a black replica
of Boss Tweed, a thoroughly corrupt pol-
itician,” and that “he had worked with
the FBI to destroy the Black Panther
Party.” '

“I'm not getting a little help from
my friends,” Cleaver said. He ought not
to be surprised that his old friends from
Ramparts and- the Peace and Freedom
Party have avoided him like the plague.
But Cleaver has found new friends—his
old enemies from the Sixties—the social
democrats who denounced him, the
Black Panther Party, SDS, the anti-war

ymovement and black power. Cleaver’s

new allies include Nat Hentoff, a regular
columnist for the Village Voice. Hentoff
is a little suspicious of Cleaver, but he
frankly confessed that he joined his de-
fense committee because Cleaver now
knows that Cuba, China, and North
Korea are “authoritarian regimes.’* Also
on the committee is John P. Roche, Pres-
ident Johnson’s cultural advisor, and a
supporter of the war in Viet Nam; and Al-
bert Shanker, President of the United
Federation of Teachers, a vigorous op-
ponent of community control of schools,
and busing. With this backing Cleaver
may yet raise the $100,000 bail he needs.

“In Paris I was given up for dead,”
he told me. “Now I’'m alive again and
back in the fight.” For Cleaver exile was
as painful as prison. He returned to the
States because he was “missing the boat”
and he knew it. Having been at the cen-
ter of the Sixties upheaval it was painful
sitting in a Left Bank cafe, collecting roy-
alties, and reading newspaper accounts of
Watergate, Nixon’s fall and revelations
about the FBI and the CIA. Cleaver hun-
gered for the stage he had once dominat-
ed. Now he is receiving far less attention
than he had hoped for. He had expected
the Berkeley faithful to flock to his
lofty prison cell in Oakland but they are
indifferent to his present condition of in-
carceration.

Cleaver gambled and misjudged his-
tory. “I thought that a fascist coup was.
imminent in 1969,” he said. “Then Al-
giers would have been a haven for everyone
from Jerry Brown to Tom Hayden.” His-
tory played a cruel joke on Cleaver; Nix-
on was forced out of office and Eldridge
was on ice in the Casbah and in Paris.
Now, in Alameda County Jail he is a pa-
thetic figure. His claim that Arafat, Huey
Newton, Ron Dellums and “members of
Jerry Brown’s staff” are in a conspiracy
against him would sound comic if it did
not have at the same time a more inister
ring. Yes, Eldridge Cleaver has .ade a
deal. Eldridge Cleaver sold out Eidridge
Cleaver.



StarshiptoMars

by Dana Beal

In case you have been wondering
what all the test results from the Mars
probe mean, scientists here have conclud-
ed that while Mars may not have a car-
bon-based biochemistry like our own, life
as we know it has a much better chance
to settle and survive there than it had
been previously suspected.

The key to this conclusion is the
discovery that Mars has-much more water
than previously believed. While the char-
acterization of the red planet as a “great
big dirty iceberg” may be premature,
photographs taken over Mars’ northpole
reveal a great circular depression extend.
ing hundreds of miles with a series of
terracedcliffs at least 1,500 feet high re-
sembling earthy continental shelves. In
the middle of this depression, somewhat
shrunken and dessicated by the action of
§ an atmosphere one hundred times thinner
B than earth, is an icecap one half a mile
thick.

In addition to the icecap, scientists
now project the existence of water in
perma-frost form (as found in the earth’s
arctic regions) underneath the shifting
red sands. This is good news for all the
Trekies and space colonization nuts. For
the thing that really makes the moon,
for instance, inhospitable to man is not
the lack of atmosphere (not so unlike
Mars’ rarified climes); modern air lock,
technology and so on can take care of
that. But without water for drinking,
bathing, cleaning, cooking, and the
# production of food...not to mention
in almost any industrial process....homae
sapiens definitely cannot prosper.

Water 1s aiso a source of oxygen for
breathing; and hydrogen for fuel can
be had by simple electrolysis. The sur-
face of Mars, due to the thin atmos-
phere, is much more exposed to solar

energies’ in the ultra-violet range than

we are. Use of the sun for power to |

generate oxygen may indeed be more

The Yipster Times

feasible on Mars. Mars has so little at- |

mosphere that the ozone layer (elec-
trified by solar ultra-violet,
etc.) is on the surface of the planet,
giving rise to an exotic variety of ox-:
ides, peroxides, and super oxides on-

x-rays, [

the heavily metallic (14% iron) sur-!

face of the planet.
In fact, ihe evidence of biological

activity in the absence of carbon based ="

compounds indicate that Martian life
such as it is may well turn out to be akin
to the little mineral crystals that people
grow in fish bowls. The fact that no met-
allic lichens have so far digested Viking

landers indicates that these quasi-biologi- {...

cal processes are probably not very
vigorous or hearty.

"Life as we know it could probably

set-up on Mars under extensive plastic
domes supported by air pressure and re-

taining heat via a green house effect. It |

will be cramped, like life among the
early hippies, communal by necessity,
and probably dull. Science fiction writer
Phillip K. Dick in one of his books en-
titled “The Three Stigmata of Palmer
Eldridge” posits just such a Martian

scene where the only relief from boredom § . :" "~

the entire colony has is the use of psyche-
delic drugs

Meanwhile, for psychedelic drug users
here on Earth who are anxiously wait-
ing for the Starship to take us away,

word comes from West Germany of |

an inventor, who claims to be taking
the last bufis out of a rocket propul-
sion system using nitric acid and ker-
osene as propellants in the place of
liguid hydrogen and oxygen. He claims

it will cut the cost of space travel by
95%. Stay tuned to the Yipster Times [

for more details.

Immortality in our lifetime?

Scientists studying tiny *hooks”
that tie up genes and make people grow
old said in San Francisco yesterday they
are close to finding a chemical that will
dissolve the bonds and reverse the aging
process.

“P'm not interested in gaining five
years here and five years there,” said Dr.
Johan Bjorksten of Madison, Wisc., a
pioneer in the study of aging, “I’'m shoot-
ing for the whole pot.”

The whole pot, he figures, is an
average life expectancy of 800 years—the
lifespan projected by the life insurance in-
dustry if everyone could stay as healthy
as they are at 16.

He added that scientists realistically
could hope for only 10 per cent success,
adding 80 years to everyone’s lifetime.

Bjorksten told a news conference at
the American Chemical Society meeting
here that aging occurs when two mole-
cules in a gene, the basic unit of heredity,
become hooked together by a process
called cross-linking.

“If you put handcuffs on two large
men, they are hampered by it and they
don’t do the work they have to do so
well,” he explained. “Then if a third man
comes along and you handcuff him to the
other two, it’s going to be even more up-
setting.”

When molecules are linked togeth-
er, he said, the cells containing the mole-
cules do not function as well.

_If they are skin cells, the skin be-
comes leathery; if they are cells of an art-
ery, the artery loses its ability to expand
and contract with the flow of blood, lead-
ing to strokes and other diseases.

What scientists need to find, he
said, is an enzyme that will dissolve the
bonds that link molecules. Then, he said,
they will have found a formula to reverse
aging. :

Already they have found one en-
zyme that seems to work in most cells, he
said, but he added it will be a miracle if
the first one they have tested turns out to
be a magic formula for youth.

Rolf Martin, a,scientist from City
University of New York, speculated that
intensive research could yield an answer
within five to ten years.

Eliminating cancer as a cause of
death, he said, would increase the average
life-span by only two years.

Bjorksten and Martin said until
their research is completed, people can
extend their lives a few years by healthy
living. They added that their research has
confirmed reports that Vitamin E slows
down the aging process, but cautioned
against huge doses of the vitamin.
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AssassinNation

Al Weberman

PARADISE ISLAND CASINO in
the Bahamas is suing Rolling Stone Maga-
zine for 10C million dollars for saying
that Meycr Lansky, financial co-ordinator
for the Syndicate, is a silent partner in
the concern: Paradise Island Casino is
owned by Resorts International, the par-
ent company of INTERTEL, an interna-
tional private intelligence organization
whose specialty is determining which em-
ployees should not be hired by reputable
casino operators because of organized
crime associations. Many former Federal
Anti-Crime Strike Force Justice Depart-
ment officials have been hired by Inter-
tel and are now working for the people
they used to try to prosecute! Research-
ers point to this and many other factors
(such as Intertel’s recommending that
Lansky protege Dino Cellini be
hired by a London casino) to document
Intertel’s domination by the Syndicate.
Resorts International sponsored a gala
benefit for legalized casino gambling in
Atlantic City a few weeks ago—Danny
Thomas was host.

Martha Mitchell with AJ Weberman

According to the Associated Press,
Martha Mitchell was convinced that mem-
bers of the Nixon Administration induced
the bone marrow cancer that eventually
killed her. AP quotes Doctor Klaus May-
er, the blood cancer specialist who treat-
ed her, In previous issues of YT I specu-
lated on the possibility of Intelligence
Community inyolvement in her death.

DR Rk

Bernard Fensterwald, a strong con-
tender for Chief Counsel of the Downing/
Gonzalez Committee is actually a deep-
cover CIA/Mafia lieutenant posing as a
Washington, D.C. attorney. In 1967 Life
Magazine = revealed that. Senator Long
(D-Missouri) was receiving over a hundred
thousand dollars a year in referral fees
from Jimmy Hoffa’s lawyers. Senator
Long had sponsored an inquiry into the
methods Robert Kennedy used to investi-

-gate the Teamsters and their connection

with organized crime. The Life article
said that Long’s Chief Counsel, Bernard
Fensterwald. also had it in for the Kenne-
dy’s because he’d contributed a. large
amount of money to their campaign fund
yet had failed to receive the Ambassador-
ia] Post he desired.

In 1976 Fensterwald went into
partnership with James McClandless, who
former State Department Intelligence Of-
ficial John Marks (co-author ot The CIA
and the Cult of Intelligence) identified as
being closely connected with Southern
Air Transport. Southern Air Transport is
the parent company of Air America, a
notorious CIA property which the CIA
actually admitted controlling before they
“sold” it to one of their high officials,
The firm of Fensterwald and McClandless
is located one floor below the Washing--
ton, D.C. office of Intertel.

How people like Fensterwald have
been able to get away with it all these
years is beyond me. Sherman Skolnick
almost had the Fenster destroyed by re-
vealing the fact that McCord Associates
(Waterbugger James McCord’s Private Se-
curity agency) financed Fenster’s group,
CTIA, (Committee to Investigate Assassi-
nations) but Mark Lane rejuvenated him
by putting him on the Board of Directors
of his Citizens Commission of Inquiry.
Bernard Fensterwald and his ex-Lieuten-
ant Richard Sprague (who is now, working
for a Government backed think-tank)
should be called before the Gonzalez
Committee to testify about their part in
the cover-up.

Senator Schweiker is winding down
his investigation of the JFK assassination.
He’s afraid that he’ll be accused of politi-
cal opportunism after the Reagan Deba-
cle. Schweiker was also shook up when
several of his witnesses asked for Federal
Protection and he was unable to give it

to them. 0 0 6

Someone’s got it in for me—they’re
planting stories in the press. I wish who-
ever it is would cut it out quick, but
when they will I can hardly guess. The
“document™ that’s showing up in key
media outlets across the country is titled
FORTHCOMING BOOKS internal memo
(dated September 1, 1976) and purports
to show that Howard Hunt is justified in
filing suit against me. The 28 page xerox-
ed report goes on to link my publisher,
Joe Okpaku with communism for print-
ing one of Angela Davis’s books and con-
tains many articles about him. I am ac-
cused of omitting Dr. Julius Mader’s
house number in East Berlin from my
bibliography. I can only conclude that
an organization that specialized in Intelli-
gence such as the CIA is behind this ef-
fort, since ne book-review sheet would
have the sort of data to realize this. The
alleged “book review’ sheet is anony-

M&QQQ

Newsweek & New Times reports
that Rockefeller is behaving oddly. He
tore up a Reagan delegates’ sign at the
GOP convention, has said at private
parties that Castro killed Kennedy and
so should be “done in”", and has been act-
ing erratic during public speeches. His lat-
est episode ‘occured when he gave some
hecklers the finger in upstate New York.
These symbolic acts indicate that Rocky
is planning evil times for the left. I have

The Yipster Times

evidence that Rockefeller has decided to
use crypto Nazi’s in a last ditch effort to
preserve capitalism. My next YT feature
will present evidence that Rocky contrib-
utes over $38,000.00 per week to crypto-
Nazis in the United States, Germany and
many other countries.

OOw

Many students of the Intelligence
Community believe that Susan Stern, a
prominent former member of the Weath-
er Underground, was assassinated by the
CIA. Susan died of an “‘apparent heart
seizure” even though she was only 33.
Doctors said the attack may have been
caused by a combination of exhaustion
and an extended period in a sauna bath
but recent Congressional Hearings on the
intelligence community have revealed
that the CIA is in possession of poisons
which will mimic a heart seizure and do
not show up in the bloodstream during
an autopsy.

oo

The Chilean fasclst military junta
has recommended use of “Mein Kampf™
and other Nazi writings as “‘instructional
aids™ for Chile’s national school system,
according to the West German daily news-
paper “Neue Ruhr-Zeitung”:

“Mein Kampf” (My Battle), written
by Adolf Hitler in 1924, was used as
a propaganda tool by the Nazi move-
ment to win over followers. Other
writings by Nazi propagandists are al-
so included in the junta’s recommen-
dations.”

OO0

For all his attempts to make Dylan
his poet laureate, Jimmy Carter has been
unsuccessful, thus far, in luring him onto
the bandwagon. When Tom Beard, Car-
ter’s rock liaison, tried to call Dylan’s
manager, the response was ‘“‘Jimmy
who?” But Beard is still trying to get Dy-
lan to perform one of a series of voter-
registration concerts Carter is planning.

0O

The Digest of Soviet Literature re-
ports that the United States Army may
have been responsible for the outbreak
of American Legion fever. They point to
a statement that the United States Army

~ of the world.

sent to Pennsylvania authorities regard-
ing the killer disease in which they only
“denied knowledge” of any accidental
leak of toxic materials, rather than saying
no such leak occured. In April the Yipster
Times carried allegations that the out-
break of swine flu in Fort Dix was attrib-
utable to C/B tests that were conducted
at that army base.

The FBI is complefing a 500 page
report that says the radical Weather Un-
derground, a target of break-ins by FBI
agents, received financial support from
Cuba.

If the report’s accuracy is confirm-
ed, it could hinder a Justice Department
criminal investigation of more than 30
current and former FBI agents linked to
burglaries of homes and offices of per-
sons with ties to the Weather Under-
ground in the New York area.

This is because recent court cases
have indicated that it may be legal for
government agents to conduct warrantless
searches and wiretaps if the target is a
threat to national security and has ties to
a foreign government.

OO0

The purpose of this column is not
to paralyze people into inaction by enum-
erating all the intelligence community
murders that have become an integral
part of American political life. The pur-
pose of my research is to get people to
act against those responsible for turning
America into an oppressive dictatorship
which has a stranglehold on a good deal
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From Combined Sources

“A recent issue of the biweekly
magazine New Times reported in its pol-
itical gossip column that shortly before

the GOP convention in Kansas City last
* month Rockefeller turned up tipsy at a
Washington dinner party and said: “Cas-
tro killed Kennedy. It must have been an
awful thing for poor Bobby to know that
it was his assassination attempts on Cas-
tro that got Jack killed.”
—NEWSWEEK, Sept. 27, 1976

Rocky had a guilty conscience. This -

time protestors were coming to expose

the cover-ups of all those political mur-

ders. : :

Officially, according to the Kansas
City police before the Convention, no
more than 20 protestors were due to
show up. Police strategy: maneuver the
demonstrators into-a g('}rner, where de-
moralized and isolated, we'd get no media
coverage,

On August 9th, 2 years to the hour
after Jerry announced the long national
bozofication had set in with his ascend-
ancy to the White House, Yippies count-
er-stroked with an early occupation of
the Heights of Penn Valley Park, only a
few hundred yards from Crown Center,
the mammoth hotel headquarters for
Ford, the Secret Service, and the Hall-
mark Cards Corp.

With the banner THE YIPPIES
ARE HERE, a handful was all it took to
explode Ford’s claim to be the President
who extinguished street protest. The
press ate it up. Ford & Co. stopped smil-
ing, waving and pretending we were sup-
porters. Indeed, the now famous com-
pulsive paralytic erection of Rocky’s
right middle finger developed in Kansas
City, from psychotic frustration at not
being able to get rid of the Yippies
harassing him.

& ook %k ok

K.C., until a year or two ago, had a
flourishing counter-community. The de-
mise of the WESTPORT TRUCKER,
the recession, and an influx of brown
Mexican heroin took their toll, but all
the freex who'd once listened to
TRUCKER-sponsored concerts in Volker
Park were still around, ready to drive
around the Boulevard of the upper park,
stopping long enough to buy 3,000
YIPSTERS in 2 days.

Meanwhile,
trying to get portable toilets'in the park,
‘and water for the 110 degree days. Not
until 200 demonstrators assembled Thurs-
(day afternoon to march on Crown Center
~did policeman Colonel Swift offer toilets.

- But still no water.

When Yfpljigs_;:surged down the big
hill to the front entrance of Crown Cen-
ter, the pigs freaked. Hotel Security made
wild threats. But K.C. cops were torn by
an unspoken policy of not letting demon-
strators score publicity, which a mass ar-
rest outside the hotel of the President of
the United States would guarantee.

So an hour'and a half after they ar-
rived, chanting, WATER, WATER EV-
EVERYWHERE, BUT NOT A DROP TO
DRINK, Colonel Swift was able to get the
elusive permission for water. Within an
hour, a hook-and-ladder truck roared in-
to the boulevard, turned on a hydrant
and ran a hose for showers from a faucet
below the Monument.

Now one lesson

their last hours of deep sleep, they never
. totally come out of ‘the stupor, and their
minds turn to ‘mush the rest of the day.
“John Mitchell did it on Mayday, 1971.
‘Rather than take another day of rattling
windows, SS-men and Crown Center Se-
curity decided to do it to the Yippies.

POLICE DIRTY TRICKS

The *“‘water protest” got national '

publicity after all, even though in the
K.C. papers it was just kids asking for
another freebie. The cops had to respond.

the Yippies were still .

riot cops have -
learned is that if you wake folksup in

Within 24 hours policeman Major Tye
ordered the boulevard barricaded and
closed to vehicular traffic—supposedly on
his own, to protect us from rightwing vig-
ilantes.

Check points at park entrance, with
several carfuls of porkers at each, put an
instant chill on our freedom of assembly,
There was almost a riot, 100 yards from
St. Mary’s Hospital. 3 times barricades
were torn down—the last time rammed by
a local K.C. hotrodder.

For the first time, Chief McNamara
agreed to meet with the Kansas City Con-
vention Coalition and Yippies. KCCC rep
Hiram Hiller came back with renewed ac-
cess for press cars and 6 “Coalition Sup-

+ port Vehicles”,

The urgency of getting down the
barricades completely, right away, still
hadn’t sunk in for the midwest Yippies
who were handling things. Like a big
open-air jail, police “‘guards” were an-
xious to pack out-of-town troublemakers
into the park, while stopping any fraterni-
zation with locals who “just came to
watch” and couldn’t deal with the police
intimidation.

That is why bigger crowds came the
week before the conventions. After the
barricades, only a hard core would walk
in the heat up the hill a mile from their
parked cars. Our “tourist money” was
choked off. And any cop could hamstring
things by “nof finding” a -car on the
“approved list”.

Most New York Yippies arrived in

 their big yellow school bus 4:30 AM,

Saturday. The better part of Saturday
was spent mulling the situation over. The
evening demo of several hundred of us
heckling Rocky set a more. buoyant
mood. By midnight the combined forces
had come up with a plan—without, unfor-

. tunately, totally digesting the winning

moves of the “water protest™.

The new arrivals proposed counter-
ing the blockade by moving the whole
camp, with sound system, to the hill be-

low the Liberty Memorial, directly across
the street from Ford and Rocky’s hotel.
The majority agreed. But only about half
actually moved to the new site, where
people clustered around the big yellow
school bus. The rest stayed around the
hard-to-move Gay Teepee, maintaining
the original site in case the lower camp
was dispersed.

With sound se loud it rattled Crown
Center’s windows, demanding the police
barricades come down, Yippies announc-
ed their arrival. We'd found the dream
site: just enough shade, elevated on a hill
for visibility, < directly across from the
NBC and CBS truck and the main en-
trance.” By moving “into confrontation,
presto-changeo our camp became a 24-
hour-a-day vigil outside the President’s
hotel.

As Sunday afternoon simmered on,
the mic was thrown open. A weird Jesus
freek, calling Rocky by name, preached
the fall of Babylon and the camel and the
eye of the needle, etc. It boomed off
Crown Center windows, but ordinary
guests weren’t allowed by the SS out on
the balconies to watch. Only one, with
his retinue, obviously an important man—
he was giving us the finger. Could it be?
It looked like Rocky, but it was a little
too far away to be sure.

It seemed too good to last At sun-
down, allegedly after rowdies threw a few
coke cans into the street, Major Tye ma-
terialized a whole line of riot pigs and
started pushing the crowd up the hill. Be-
fore people milling around the bus could
freak, Dana Beal leaped to the top of the
bus and observed that considering how
we'd faced down lines of porkers for 10
years against the War, it was great to be
back! i

Sudden cheers and bright lights
from 5 video crews had the required ef-
fect. Ben Masel and Major Tye agreed the
police wouldn’t vamp on the lower camp,
if Yippies stopped throwing trash in the
street. (cont. on next pg.)
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‘WAKING UP JERRY! Lack of sleep hurt, thougﬁ, as ban-
] At 4:00 in the morning the next ners were neglected and Ben, instead of

shift commander, Colonel Swaddell, can- blocking Crown Center’s main entrance
celled Tye’s promise, marched into the like the water protest, decided to bring

lower camp, and announced that anyone 7 =
who didn’t leave would be arrested. Un- //
der threat of confiscation of both bus and

sound’ systems, and with no media - :

around, YIPs staged the slowest retreat
up the hill they could.

°  Waking the other camp, they
marched back down to “wake up Jerry”
at 6:00 AM, just as NBC’s “Today Show”
started broadcastmg live from Crown :
Center. The. windows started rattling
again to “FUCK ROCKY, FUCK
FORD!”—except that now it was audible
live, all over the country.

B

“— the bus to use as a soundstage from an
——— empty parking space across the street.
Not only was the bus harassed, but when
NBC filed warrants for disturbing the
peace, it wasn’t necessary to bust 200
demonstrators for sitting in or milling
about the main entrance—just Ben and
Tom Geronomi, for refusing to stop
talking.

By this time it was fairly obvmus‘
~—— the nominating drama would monopolize

media attention during the early and mid- —
GOP Convention, just as the boredom of
3
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the Demcon forced videocrews —say ...
Tuesday nite—out on the street to cover .—
the most inconsequential actions.

But this Monday morning Yippies

L . didn’t realize the reaction to Ben’s bust— "
S X I8~ press had now shown up—might be our _
\¥ 5 i . last chance to cop international newsun- —

[ til Ford was nominated. (With less than ==

200, just a week later, anti-nuclear sit-ins
did it in Mass.) Instead, paranoid sound
people removed the sound system. Half —
the Yippies wanted to sit in, half wanted —
to wait for Ben to be released.

Some just opposed sit-ins and mass ..,
arrests as tactics—"“The first duty of ap!
revolutionary is not to get caught”,
quoth A. Hoffman. Others were seduced __
by the idea that negotiating with the pigs-}
might help, and hassling gave them the
excuse to stop demos at the actual Con-
vention, at Kemper Arena. But while they =
© waited, they blew it.

After he was released Ben (fried
from no sleep for 45 hours) just wanted =
\to get busted over and over for usmg fhei=
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Photo by Harry Wasserman _

We had some early problems in the park with gays bemg 3
but these generally ceased after the Y.L.P. security forces made clear its intention
to fight alongside the gay security force, which was already preparing to “teach
these fools .that there’s such a thing as a butch faggot.”” Yippies took to wearing the
N.C.G.A. symbol of a pink triangle, which was the badge imposed by the Nazis—
like the yellow Star of David for Jews—to identify and isolate homosexuals, a half-
million of whom were murdered in the ovens. Our gesture of solidarity was so suc-
cessful that Time magazine concluded gay activists formed the largest contingent
present in Kansas City.
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sound system. Cops would promise him —
they’d come down to negotiate, but of —
course they didn’t. They never did again,
the whole time, unless forced. They were .
too busy slipping the last dirty tricks into —
place.

Monday night, the first spirited

Several more attacks occurred against Yippie women (including, for a march on Kemper Arena found a new
second time, Carrie Yippie), who each time successfully defended themselves. The -5 ;‘;;!;;k;ire;’:gr%egt yz};ﬂgﬁ ‘:6. “éir; a:
only known rape of the ten day period occurred over the weekend, when two local : : i or re caged, a
teenage boys got a female acquaintance drunk and “took advantage of her condi- CROWN CENTER HOTEL | Kemper a cyclone-fenced Stalag Wais__sp& =
tion.” The woman refused to press charges, but when the rapists showed up at FORD cially coz_istructed“f()r us. Progress! Anfi,
Kemper Arena Tuesday night, she reported their presence to Y.LP. security. Soon’ ; . fenced in the “Demonstrator Area
they were approached by the largest Yippie in the area, Missouri’s Dennis Williams, HEADQUARTERS with us was Harvey Baldwin, a Christian —
who politely informed them that if he ever saw them again “I will personally cas- ' Nazi known not only for his advocacy of —
trate both of you.” Ashen-faced, the punks ran—and were probably impotent for a genocide agamst.hbuthact.ual murderous
month. Unfortunately, Y.I.P.’s perennial problem of male dominance prevented assaults on Gay churches in California. A _
the emergence of an organic women’s anti-rape squad like the one in Miami which line of cops gleefully kept the first Peo- _
pounded would-be rapists bloody with metal tent stakes. ples’ Tribunal Against Repression from

Two anticipated problems failed to materialize: racial clashes and even re-locating his booming sound-sys-
heavy narcotics use. Racial tensions run high in Kansas City, including Volker Park, tem—placed behind YIP’s for maximum

where young blacks and whites sell each other drugs amid frequent beatings and distraction—which garbled everything.
ripoffs. Delegates entering and leaving Kem-

per were thus spared the guilt-trip of
hearing Missouri rad Dennis Williams re-
late how local rednecks successfully con-
spired to take his adopted son away be- —
cause “they didn’t like the color of his i
skin”, and how a State Trooper, present
guarding Holy Harvey, had kicked his

. fpregnant wife in the stomach, causing her -
{ to muscarry.

shg epnus
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But kids of all races mingled peacefully in Penn Valley Park, even after
a flurry of ripoffs that could have been assigned racial motives. A paranoid scene
developed when a group of local blacks appeared in the gay campsite minutes be-
fore Wednesday night’s march, but it dissipated quickly. And while there was evi-
dence of a few people shooting up in the park, death drug sellers were quickly
evicted and none attempted to return; there was no massive influx of cheap downs
or poisoned acid, as in Miami and at Mayday .

Dennis Williams® arm has since been amputated due to an infection that

set in after cops smashed open stitches on his shoulder near the end of the Conven- 3
tion. I
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On the positive side, music by Da-
vid Peel, his sideman Jimmy Maxwell, and
Grimes Poznikov was inspired by the con-
frontation with Harvey, whilst many
thought the Zentner Bros. Rock Band
was one of the best YIP ever had. But
poor communications meant YIPs never
knew til we got back that more than 500
townies had been diverted from the pro-
test by a rock concert that just myster-
iously happened in the Park.

Tuesday everyone was still groggy,
from the dawn roust the morning before.
Delaying the march for stragglers only re-
sulted in missing the empty hours of early
i evening TV down by the Arena, plus In-
dian demonstrators and a number of lo-
cal rads who were supposed to rap on

ed to hear the “ATTICA! ATTICA!” No
longer smiling or waving, Rocky flipped
these folks who’d been besieging his
hotel the now famous finger. Only 20
yards away—now there could be no doubt
it was him! Yet in the next morning’s
news, “heat prostration” replaced spec-
tacular police brutality as the reason Ger-
onomi kept passing out all that night (an
obvious concussion), while Rocky had to
wait another month to get recognition for
his new political trademark. Lazy report-
ers had relied on the WATCH OBSERV-
ER, which printed the police version ver-
batim. -

What is more, after Aron Kay began
chanting FREE PUERTO RICO Tuesday
nite in the Chicano neighborhood oq‘tl‘}_}e

_ prisons, et al. A complicated double
‘ ‘barricade and massive re-enfocements of
troopers now protected Harvey. And they

{

4

refused to dignify 12 gays bent on mass

arrest in a “forbidden area™ by so'much
-as noticing them.
THE WATCHERS...

“ledioiuniy
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;: So intent on suppressing the protest
story were authorities that a quasi-offi-

[210H

a cial, group of “neutrals” called WATCH,

| Inc. was also stationedlin the camp, —]

| e !

| | _ = A

| PUEHLERACH oe v mh mo o v o w20 ---3“-:-- ¢
_ e L LR %]e g
around the hotels, at Kemper—every-+g = 3 — |
where. Their founder was Walt Bodine, anS = 2
local radic“fatcat who had Tunch andI-n ?{*7 :
cocktails with police officials at least|2 _J L i s -
once a week for 4 months before the, — BNy PUBID) R
Convention. There were about 400 i ’ e ,
WATCHERS, wvery straight, volunteer ||| L :

brain police who wrote down everything
that happened for the DAILY WATCH
OBSERVER, a kind of omnibus press
release.

The DAILY WATCH OBSERVER
got more slanted every day. Wednesday
noon, for example, early Yippie risers
wended downtown to the Radisson Muehl-
ebach Hotel, where Ford and Rocky were
lunching with—Raygun. Filtering in with
some Ford fans, YIPs unfurled a gigantic
STOP GOVT SPYING across the street,
enlisting half a block in their demo by
simply turning up their bullhorn.

As Ford arrived, a Fordette tried to
muffle the Yippie horn with her sign.
When Tom Geronomi tried pushing the
sign away, cops jumped him, pulled him
over their barricade, whacked his head,
jumped up and down on him, and then
dragged him, bouncing his head on the
pavement, down the hill to a paddy wag-
on, where he passed out.

Rocky had to disembark amongst
protestors so mad no bullhorn was need-

way to Kemper, one lone sore-head fol
lowed for several blocks shouting WE
ARE MEXICANS! This minor incident
was inflated into the lead story of the
DAILY WATCH OBSERVER, and Wed-
nesday a small group of Chicanos were in-|
cited to heckle marchers, though no vio-
lence occurred. WATCH, INC., was free
not only to suppress news, but manage
events,

. Wednesday night we hit Kemper
with the feeling of having regained the in-
itiative at the Muehlebach, because the
Man hadn’t been able to stalemate such
non-scheduled moves. An Ohio Yippie in
a Ford mask with a noose around his
neck lead a small crowd selling Yipsters at
the delegate gate—where they weren’t
supposed to be. As a goof, Frisco YIP Ed
Rosenthal got a warrant for Holy Harvey
for “disturbing the peace” (disrupting our
demo) identical to the one NBC filed
against Masel Monday, but Major Tye re-
fused to enforce it. So much for equal
protection. S
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NOBODY FOR PREZ

Now as everybody knows, in 68
Yippies nominated Pigasus, and a pig
won. Their 72 candidate was a rock and,
to everyone’s surprise, when Watergate
settled, it was the Rock who ended up
running the show. This time we had 2
candidates: J. Edgar Kangaroo, advocate
of Kangaroo Courts and penal colonies,
and Nobody.

Traditionalist J. Edgar wouldn’t
show up prior to an acceptance speech,
of course, so he was completely up-
-staged when Wavy Gravy, Nobody’s
Fool, observed that who should be listen-
ing to Holy Harvey next to us, but ....
Nobody?

13LOH HOVEITHINW NOSSIavH

Nobody was nominated by acclam-
ation; Tricky Dick got second-spot be-
cause of the genuine nostalgia all Yippies
have for him. Inside Kemper, GOP’ers
were nominating their very own Nobody:
Bozo K. Ford, a true blue kangaroo who’s
good for . . . Nobody!

With the drama over inside, CBS
turned (predictably) to the reaction of
the protestors outside, where Ike Pappas
found 500 Yippies in clownface, parading
around Kemper surrounding a converti-
ble, throwing confetii into the back seat
which contained. . . Nobody.

Pnoto by Lody Marr]

ettt

The Bozos for Nobody Parade was
the media opening for which we’d pulled
our punches, to get down by Kemper,
foregoing the possibly greater respecta-
bility of sit-ins and mass arrest early on.
For several minutes nationwide the politi-
cal hardcore who watched conventions
could dig our chosen images. It erystal-
lized a definite trend. For the month
after the Yippie Counter-Nomination,
alarmed polisters found a solid majority
preferred neither Carter, nor Ford, but
Nobody.

CLOWNS SAVE THE DAY

Pros and cons of civil disobedience
tactics aside, though, Yippies were now
moving off the outrages of the past few
days. 30 folks from the Nobody Parade
joined the Y.T. sellers where delegate
buses were leaving. Police security was so
lax that they just couldn’t help kicking
and spitting on the buses. One bus stalled,
a window was kicked in. Terror contorted

‘delegate faces; police pushed the rowdies

back behind a low fence, where they be-
gan to throw rocks at the buses.

Not until the last bus left did a pig
sergeant grab Bad Matzel, the only one
he recognized, for throwing a Coke can.
Arrest No. 45 for Masel, leaving him 17
short of Abbie Hoffman’s outdoor
world’s record. The YIPs sat down. An-
other 30 arrived. The sit-ins threatened to
stay til Ben was freed, but couldn’t block
buses that were already gone. Police with-
diew

Moving to 19th and Wyomning,
where there was traffic to block (includ-
ing Holy Harvey’s soundtruck, which u-
turned and vamoosed), Yippies swelled
to 100 with the arrival of the bus. Now
police had to negotiate. Their attorney,
Manford Maier, was back in less than 45
minutes with word that charges against
Ben were reduced to “using loud, offens-
ive, insulting language”, which would be
dropped.

Thursday, while serious YIPs from
around the country met to map out new
directions for the upcoming period (see
Box), things got even hairier. All cars
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were turned away at the barricades,
which were re-enforced. On the camp
outskirts, 3 locals"were arrested, and a
young Yippie woman trying to stop it
got her arm broken. About 25 pigs, led
by Officer Autry, came charging up the
hill in 2 lines. More than half the camp
was off at the conference, but the pork-
ers faltered halfway up anyway—nobody
could run all the way up that hill on a
hot day.

But now it was obvious that as the
Repubs and their press began to fade, the
pigs would vamp on us. While most went
ahead to Kemper, a few people stayed be-
hind and, when no one was looking, pull-
ed up stakes and moved everything to the
house on Harrison St.—cramped, legal,
and located in a friendly neighborhood.

Down at the Arena disgruntled
freex again supercharged things by burn-
ing—for the first time ever in K.C.—an
upside down American Flag. Cops started
to amass and get ugly. Only A.J. Weber-
man and Wavy Gravy averted disaster.
Just before the pigs were ready to strike
A_J. moved the whole crowd over in front
of Holy Harvey—making it Harvey’s audi-
ence, even though Harvey had stopped
talking from hoarseness. Wavy again sup-
plied clownface, on the theory that police
would never dare beat up a bunch of
clowns..

Imagine: POLICE
CLOWNS IN KANSAS CITY.

ATTACK

The pigs surrounded us, forced us
to march down a dark side street, and
closed in for the kill—and then looked at
the whiteface and round red rubber nos-

The Yipster Times

es, and backed off.

£ B O

It had worked. Just as Rocky’s fin-
ger proclaimed: “You can’t get rid of
me!!”, they hadn’t gotten rid of us, eith-
er. Rocky started flipping the bird in
K.C. The rabble rattling his windows
seems to have shorted his circuits so bad-
ly that old finger just pops up involuntari-
ly whenever rads apply stimulus. Like
Pavlov’s dog.

Though our demos were never big-
ger than 500, 1000’s participated thru the
10 days, without a War or much of a local
movement, and what they learned about
timing, site, tactics and perseverence was
a lot more relevant to the modest-sized
demos radicals turn out these days.

Remember, the 5,000 demonstrat-
ors in_Chicago and Miami were mobilized
each by at least 25 different radical
groups. With a Coalition consisting really
of a sprinkling of local lefties, YIP, the
National Coalition of Gay Activists, and
COYOTE (Call Off Your Old Tired Eth-
ics), groups at all 3 conventions turned
out an average of 200 protestors.

300 Indians attended a separate
pow wow. But other radical groups who’d
announced protests, including NOW, the
SWP and the Chicago Area Peace Council,
never showed. (Sectarianism?)

For Yippies, who came away from
K.C. prepared to hold hometown Nobody
for President rallies, to pull together re-
gionally, and to travel to D.C. to Inaugur-
ate Nobody Jan. 20, best of all was find-
ing folks everywhere excited about
Yippie! again.

Photo by Cody Marr
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On August 8, 1976 a fisherman in
the Miami area found a 55 gallon oil
drum floating nearby his boat. Inside it
was an old man whose legs had been cut
off and stuffed in the barrel along with
his torso. The Miami Police soon identi-
fied the mangled corpse as that of Johnny
Roselli, a mobster who had been around
since the days of Al Capone. The coroner
discovered that Roselli had been given a
drink before he was strangled and that
the only reason his body had floated to
the surface was because chronic emphy-
semd had caused air pockets to form in
various organs. Roselli’s death was the
latest in a series of murders connected
with the assassination of John F. Ken-
nedy.

"~ In the past year at least 4 other
people who had direct knowledge of CIA-
Mafia involvement in Kennedy’s assassina-
tion have been executed. They are Sam
Giancana, William Harvey, Sheffield Ed-
wards, and Mickev Cohen.

Johnny Roselli began to work for
Al Capone and Meyer Lansky in the
1920’s. Sam Giancana was a body guard
and driver for Capone, and Roselli worked
directly under him. It was around this
time that Giancana and Roseli met Jack
Rubinstein, a member of the “Dave Mil-
ler” gang which included prize fighter
Barney Ross. In an FBI report dated June
5, 1954 (CE1288), “Ross stated that one
of the people with whom this group be-
came acquainted with was Al Capone.
Ross did not realize at the time that Ca-
pone was a big time racketeer. When
Ross fought, tickets for the fight were
sold for about $.25 each and Capone on
several occasions would buy all the seats
in-the gym and then give the tickets away
to all the fans who supported Ross. He
recalled that occasionally Capone would
give Ross or one of the members of the
group with whom he associated with a
dollar to run innocuous errands.” Ross
also stated that Ralph Capone, Matty Ca-
pone, Frank Nitti’, and Machine Gun Sam
Hunt were aiso associated with Ross,
Ross believed that Ruby had run one of
these “innocuous erfands™ for Capone, a
polite way of saying that he’d worked for
hime

Alphonso Capone in 1931. Note innocuous look.

apone “messenger boy Bamey Ross (right) enters Dallas,
Texas Courtroom to festify as character witness for Jack

Ruby in 1964. He is followed by Ruby’s assistant defense
attorney, Joe TondWill. &

By 1940 Giancana had become boss
of the Chicago Rackets and Roselli mov-
ed to Hollywood where he took over
AGVA (American Guild of Variety Art-
ists.) Roselli was soon convicted of ex-
tortion for shaking down Hollywood Stu-
dios, promising them an end to labor un-
rest in return for a large amount of mon-
ey. Roselli was freed after three years of
prison. Barred from Union activity, he be-
gan to manage gambling on the West
Coast (with Mickey Cohen) and also visit-
ed mob interests in Cuba.

After Castro came to power, Rock-
efeller’s cousin, Tracy Barnegpordered his
deputy, Richard Bissell, to enlist the ser-
vices of orpanized crime in assassinating
the Cuban Communist. Bissell had Colon-
el Sheffield Edwards contact Robert Ma-

heu, a former FBI Agent and CIA Con-

tract Employee Wwho had met numerous
gangsters while working for Howard
Hughes in Las Vegas. Maheu contacted
Roselli. who introduced him to Giancana
and Santo Traffacante, the gambling over-
lord of Cuba who worked under Meyer
Lansky.

Around this time CIA Operatives
William Harvey and Jim O’Connell were
assigned to the CIA-Mafia Operation. In
March of 1961 this cabal made several at-
tempts to poison Castro but failed in
every instance. The Syndicate was so de-
termined to get their Cuban gambling in-
terests back they continued sponsoring
periodic assassination attempts against
Fidel despite heavy losses. Many of the
personnel involved in these plots had
been double-crossed by Fidel—Jack Ruby
was one of them. Jack had smuggled arms
to Castro for the mob in an effort to pro-
tect its investments there; they supported
both Batista and Fidel, thusly hedging

i

theﬁ“ bets. After the July 26 Movement
took power, Castro gave Jack an interest
in the Tropicana Casino for his loyalty,
Ruby wvisited Havana shortly after Cas-
tro’s revolution ostensibly to see his part-
ner Lewis McWillie—manager of the Trop-
icana, The real purpose of his visit was to
relay a message from his boss Meyer Lan-
sky to Santo Traffacante, who had been
temporarily detained by the Castro Re-
gime.* Ruby talks about this trip in
his testimony to the Warren Commission.
He calls the Lansky brothers the Fox bro-
thers in order to avoid breaking the Mafia
code of, nof naming names. For more de-
tailed analysis see my book Coup d’ Etat
In America or Robert Sam Anson’s book
They've Killed The President.

By 1963 Ruby had become part of
a CIA/Mafia plot to shoot Castro at close
range. He purchased 4 cobra pistrols in
an obscure gun store in Dallas and mailed
them to his friend McWillie, who was
working in a syndicate controlled hotel in
Las Vegas. McWillig, deported from Cuba,
had stayed in Miami for a few months
and then went to Nevada where he got a
job at the Cal-Neva Lounge. Frank Sinat-
ra, who owned a good deal of this Lake
Tahoe Casino, had been forced to sell his
shares in it because of his association with
Sam Giancana, who frequented the place.
McWillie eventually got a job as pitboss in
the Thunderbird Casino, a notorious Lan-
sky property, and passed the guns to Ro-
selli, who was his boss at the time— Ro-
sellt controlled gambling in LA and Las
Vegas. Roselli gave them to his hitmen
who were to attack Castro at the Latin
American Stadiu- +, in Havana, on April
7, 1963. But Castro’s Militia arrested
them and seized Ruby’s cobras and sever-
al fragmentation grenzdes. (Castro’s list

.--‘ ] '_'— T

John Roselli in 1975 leaving a Senate office building in Wash-

ington after testifying on an alleged CIA plot to kill Castro.

of attempts on his life—Miami Herald
July 31, 1975) The reason Ruby pur-
chased the pistols in an obscure gunstore
was to insure that credible deniability
would be built into the operation—i.e.
if the hitmen were apprehended it would
be impossible to trace their weapons back
to the CIA/Mafia. e

These -operations were being con-
ducted against the wishes of John Kenne-
dy and his brother Robert who had
ordered the CIA to stop_trying to kill
Castro. This fact combined with Kenne-
dy’s action during the Cuban Missile Cris-
is and Bay of Pigs convinced the Foreign
Policy Establishment that in order to kill
Castro and “liberate” Cuba, the President
had to be executed. The same people who
were plotting Castro’s demise planned the
JFK assassination.

Ruby’s role in the plot entailed
snuffing the patsy the CIA had set up for
its “executive action”. As fate would
have it “police-buff” Ruby’s hitman, Of-
ficer Tippett, botched the job and Ruby
had to ‘personally fulfill the contract
on Oswald. Jack Ruby was dead of can-
cer about two years later.

Ruby was also in contact with Ro-
selli through Frank Goldstein, a man who
like 1Roselli was a professional gambler
with contacts in the theatrical workers
union. Ruby claimed he called Goldstein
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ice building in Wash-
fot to kill Castro.
regarding a local taber dispute. Actually,
Goldstein was helping set up a meeting
between Ruby and Roselli that occurred
in Las Vegas just prior to the assassina-
tion. I spoke with Frank Goldstein and
asked him if he had any connection with
AGVA and if he was a professional gamb-
ler. He told me that he was retired and
not connected with ‘any union. I asked
him if he knew .Regelli. and he responded
that he: doesn’t ‘“know any of the
names.” He didn’t'want to talk about it
on the phone.

During the mid-sixties the CIA con-
inued to try elihinating Castro, and
Roselli became a eelebrity among West
Coast gangsters. Frank Sinatra got him in-
to the exclusive Friars Club where he
ripped off big Holl¥wood stars. When the
case came to couri Roselli brought up
his involvement imdhe CIA-Mafia plot to
kill Castro, and got a-relatively light sen-
tence.

In 1966 Semator Long (Dem—Mis-
souri) began an investigation of a wiretap
the CIA had initiated as a favor to Gian-
cana . Then CIAGeneral Counsel Law-
rence Housten told CIA Capitol Hill plant

Y e e
Jack Ruby with protege at his Chicago club, 1957. When Ruby
came to NYC to book talent for his sleazy nightclub he dealt
with Associated Booking, owned by Murray Korshak who
some have dubbed “The new Meyer Lansky ™.

was imperiled by the probe. It was quiet:
ly dropped.

A few years later, Giancana did 12

months in a Chicago jail rather than testi-

fy before a Grand Jury led by U.S, Attor:
ney Hanrahan. Upon release Giancana
fled to Mexico in self-imposed exile des:
site the fact that US.Prosecuter William
Hundley had halted Giancana’s prose-
cution. Hundley was eventually hired by
INTER-TEL, a Hughes corporation
which many researchers regard as a front
for the CIA and the Mafia.

Shortly after he was forcibly re-
turned to the United States, Sam was call-
ed before the Rockefeller Commission.
He was murdered a few days prior to his
appearance before the Church Commit-
tee. The circumstances of his death indi-
cate that someone close to him did it,
most likely another syndicate member.

After Sam’s murder members of the
CIA/Mafia plot began dying like flies.
Sheffield Edwards kicked the bucket in
the summer of 1975 and ‘Roselli began
to worry. He had been called before the
Ervin Committee in regard to Robert
Maheu and Howard Hughes. His testi-

. Bernard Fensterwald®* (Long’s Chief

mony remains secret. Then, when he was
~ Counsel) that the €TA/Mafia connection

called before the Church Committee he
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Jack Ruby with protege at his Chicago club, 1957. When Ruby
came to NYC fo book talent for his sleazy nightclub he dealt
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ly dropped.

A few years later, Giancana did 12
months in a Chicago jail rather than testi-
fy before a Grand Jury led by U.S, Attor:
ney Hanrahan. Upon release Giancana
fled to Mexico in self-imposed exile des-
dite the fact that US.Prosecuter William
Hundley had halted Giancana’s prose:
cution. Hundley was eventually hired by
INTER-TEL, a Hughes corporation
which many researchers regard as a front
for the CIA and the Mafia,

Shortly after he was forcibly re-
turned to the United States, Sam was call-
ed before the Rockefeller Commission.
He was murdered a few days prior to his
appearance before the Church Commit-
tee, The circumstances of his death indi-
cate that someone close to him did it,
most likely another syndicate member.

After Sam’s murder members of the
CIA/Mafia plot began dying like flies.
Sheffield Edwards kicked the bucket in
the summer of 1975 and Roselli began
to worry. He had been called Before the
Ervin Committee in regard to Robert
Maheu and Howard Hughes. His testi-
mony remains secret, Then, when he was
called before the Church Committee he
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Samuel Giancana gbes be oreNéada ging board regarding
‘his connections with the Cal Neva Lounge and Frank Sinatra

made a ferrible mistake: he failed to say
that Castro killed Kennedy.

In 1967 Roselli allegedly told his
attorney Edward Morgan that Castro
Agents had hit JEK. Morgan contacted
Washington journalist Drew Pearson who
passed the information on to Hooyer and
Warren, Morgan, who remained Roselli’s
attorney until his death, had been chief
inspector of the FBI for seven years and
was probably attempting to blame it on
Castro in order to throw suspicion away

from the Intelligence Community. When

Roselli testified before the Church Com-
mittee, he did not say the JFK killing was
a result of Castro’s retaliation; in fact he
denied either receiving the information
that Castro retaliated, or discussing it
with his lawyer. Jack Anderson reports
that Roselli told his associates that the
same people who tried to kill Castro kill-
ed JFK. He might have told Senator
Schweiker this when he festified about
the JFK killing at a session when only
Schweiker was present.

Like Giancana, Roselli was snuffed -

by someone close to him. [Roselli was on
his way to the Rolling Hills Golf Course
where Chuck O’Brien, (Jimmy Hoffa’s
‘foster son) and Sam Giancana had been
known to frequent. Prior to his death
Roselli had met with Charlie “The
Blade” Tourine, who along with Frank
Sturgis was part of the gambling scene in
Castro’s Cuba in 1959. Roselli had also
spoken with Allen Smiley who had been
present at Meyer Lansky’s partner, Bugsy
Siegel’s rub-out in 1947. (Las Vegas
Police Report ) These men are the
top suspects in “rolling out the barrel”
for Roselli.: I suspect that Meyer Lansky
gave the orders to question .Roselli and
then snuff him. Lansky was the top man

in the CIA-Matia plot agamst Castro, but
the only joufhalist who had guts enough
to point this out was Victor Reisel.
Reisel had been blinded by the mob
about 20 years ago. ;

Some have suggested that Roselli
was murdered because he was unable tobe
deported and the mob was afraid he
might testify against them. Roselli had
sent two hoods to prison because of his
testimony in 1971, and nothing had hap-
pened to him, .

Roselli was cremated immediately
following his death. Senator Gary Hart,
who along with Senator Schweiker had
led a sub-committee investigating the JFK
Assassination, went down to Miami and
began to pressure the FBI to enter the
case. Nixon appointee Clarence Kelley
claimed the bureau had no jurisdiction.

Kelley had been covering up for
Nixon and Ford ever since he took office.
This is why Ford would not dismiss him,
despite the fact thatKelley had the FBI
exhibits division install curtains for him.

Attorney General Levi ordered the
FBI to enter the Roselli case, citing a
statute which makes it a Federal crime to
obstruct proceedings before Congression-
al Committees. To date the FBI has come
up with nothing,

Then William Harvey died of an
apparent heart attack even though he had
no history of heart trouble. Mickey Co:
hen also died around this time. Coher
was a close associate of RoseHi and
Ruby. Ruby had told Irving Alkana that
he ‘'was close friends with Cohen
(CE1228) in a personal conversation.

Prior to his death Cohen had been
working on his autobiography with Peer
Nugent, who I had occasion to debate
during an appearance at a west coast

Meyer Lansky in 19'{5 leaving Courthouse in Israel.

book fair. Nugent offered standard CIA
arguments torrefute my contenfion of CiA
complicity in the John Kennedy assassi-
nation and admitted that he had been sus-
pected of being a CIA Agent while wisit-
ing Africa, but had been released through
the intervention of Secretary of State
Dean Rusk. Organized crime authority
Art Kunkin, who was part of this debate,
investigated Nugent 'and found that he
had definitely maintained ties to the CIA.
After my co-author *Canfield and I left
Hollywood, Nugent repeatedly called the
people with whom we’d stayed, and ask-
ed them where we would be showing up
next.

Some have suggested that Fimmy
Hoffa’s disappearance was a result of his
early association with Jack Ruby. I be-
lieve Hoffa was killed because he was try-
ing to regain the power which Freddy
Fitzsimmons had usurped while Hoffa
was in jail. Fitzsimmons had the mob on
his side and Jimmy is probably in a barrel
shaped coffin deep below Lake Michigan.
By this time he is probably decomposed
beyond recognition. This is why Dusty
Miller, the number two man in the Team-
sters under Fitzsimmons is still alive de-
spite the fact that Ruby called him sev-
eral times prior to the assassination.

The murders of Giancana and Ro-
selli have made it clear to the American
public that the syndicate can kill as many
witnesses as it wants with total impunity.
Many more witnesses to the John Kenne-
dy assasination plot were murdered from
1964 to 1967 and many others are going
to die in the future. So far approximately
15 people who were listed in the index of
Coup D’etat have died since the book was
published. I'm glad I didn’t put myself in
the index!!

FOOTNOTES:

* The fact that Ruby was visiting Trarracants
was revealed in a recently de-classifled CIA
document in which a journalist who had besn
Imprisoned by Castro say Ruby-and Traffa
cante meet (Cable date November 28, 1563
No., 94 of recently de-classified CiA docu-
ments.

* See Assassin Mation
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Biggest grass
smuggler busted

(ZNS) A man deseribed by Federal
authorities as America’s leading marijuana
smuggler has been sentenced to 10 years
in prison.

Twenty-nine-year-old Roger Fry of -

Mill Valley, California, was sentenced to
the prison term without the possibility of
parole by a Detroit Federal Judge after he
pleaded guilty to masterminding a world-
wide pot-smuggling operation.

According to Federal investigators,

" Fry’s ring was busted as it was in the pro-

cess of smuggling an incredible 30 million
pounds of the evil weed into the United
States. -

Fry and 21 others from seven states
pleaded guilty to charges of using oil
tanker trucks to move thousands of tons
of pot from Mexico into California. Pros-
ecutors contended that in one year alone,
Fry made $25 million (Dollars) in profits
from the marijuana operation.

The dope was allegedly trucked
from Mexico to Santa Ana, California,
where it, was weighed, repackaged and
shipped Jout to locations across the
United States?

The Yipster Times
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41 Arrested atSan Diego

e

San Diego, Cal.—Police arrested 41
persons and snuffed out what was billed
as a marijuana “Smoke In” near the Pep-
per Grove area of Balboa Park on Septem-
ber 6.

The gathering, which police con-
tended involved illegal refreshments, was
sponsored by the Youth International
Party (Yippies). About 200 showed up to
gather on a hillside west of the Pepper
Grove area.

Police made frequent sorties into
the crowd and led participants. mostly

young persons, away to waiting patrol

vehicles. There were no incidents of

violence.
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School daze
B [ ]
in Chicago
Out of all 200,000 kids in Chicago’s
Second District schools, 22,000 smoke
weed every day and 24,000 get high at
least once a week, according to police
estimates. Police also say 10,000
students drink every day, and 34,000

drink weekly. Remember, these are the
ones the cops know about!

Rocky Mountain High

Ever since Claudine Longet shot and

 killed star skiier ““Spider”” Sabich, there

has been more press in Aspen, Colo.,
‘than the resort ever hoped for. In recent
months, Jahn Ray Enright, Regional
Director of the DEA, has asserted that
Aspen not only is a major drug center,
but the great gathering place of in-
ternational drug dealers, ““the cocaine
capital of the country.”

Pitkin County D.A. Frank Tucker

retorts this ““is just not a fact. The DEA®

has made claims that cannot be backed
up in a court of law. Aspen is an out-
doors, healthy town. It’s not full of
unhappy people. It’s not full of drug
addicts.”’

Nevertheless, observers there report
wide availability, not only of grass and
coke, but speed and heroin as well.

4 - :
Steve Sabich, 29-year-old contractor d
brother of Spider, has admitted that in’ How tosen

1970 he was busted for grass smuggling
in his private plane. Aspen residents
have ajso been busted recently in
Vicksburg, Miss., and Camden
County, Georgia, for smuggling huge
quantities of hash and Colombian. In
1973 ““‘Operation Snowflake’’ resulted
in the arrest of 24 Coloradoans by feds.
One defendant led authorities directly
to a coke refining factory in Bogota,
Colombia.

Aspen Councilman Pete Degregorio
insisted, *‘It’s not any worse here than
anywhere else,”” and was soon ob-
served in nude dancing with local snow
bunnies while hundreds cheered them
on and passed out mescaline and LSD
to the crowd.

At times, moié than 50 uniformed
officers were involved in the operation
and a police command post, complete
with a communications van, was set up
east of San Diego High School.

Persons arrested were processed at
the command post. The arrests were
made for unlawful assembly under both
the municipal and state Penal Codes; be-
ing under the influence of alcohol and
possession ‘of marijuana.

Police said that because the gath-
ering lacked a permit from the city Parks
and Recreation Department, those show-
ing up were cited for violating the Munici-
pal Code.

When the gathering was declared an
unlawful dssembly, the participants were
then cited under the state Penal Code,

police said. Groups of more than 25 must

have a permit from the city parks depart-
ment.

The group had applied for a permit
to use the park for what it promised
would be a political rally in protest of
California’s new marijuana law.

But George Loveland, communi-
ty relations supervisor for the city’s Parks
and Recreation Department, said the re-
quest came too late. .

“City policy has been to deny large
groups a gathering permit on holiday
weekends,” he explained. “The park is

' just too crowded during those times.”

Another thing bothered park peo-
ple. Loveland said.

pot
in the mail

(ZNS) Before you decide to send
some marijuana through the mail, you
might pay attention to this: the U.S.
Postal System has developed a package
profile designed to help inspectors pick
out bundles that might contain pot.

What does a package of the evil
weed look like? According to Court re-
cords, the profile warns inspectors about
a sturdy parcel, weighing from 16 to 20
pounds, tightly wrapped in plain brown
paper, and often marked airmail.

According to the profile, the return
addresses, if any, are almost always ficti-
tious.

Smoke-ln

One of the untortunate 41 arrested
at the San Diego Smoke-In.

“Marijuana smoking is illegal.”

California’s new marijuana law
went into effect Jan. 1. It makes posses-
sion of one ounce or less of marijuana
a misdemeanor offense punishable by not
more than $100 and issuance of a citation
that remains on the police records for
two years.

Possession of more than one ounce
also is a misdemeanor. But that offense is
punishable by up to six months in county
jail and a fine not to exceed $500.

—SAN DIEGO UNION

Weed in the
White House

(ZNS) The alternative publication
Washington Newsworks reports that the
best blend of international pot available
in all of Washington, D.C. reportedly can
be found in the White House.

The publication quotes a reliable
source as stating that White House staff
members are able to obtain choice mari-
juana from glebe-trotting diplomats who
can pass through customs without being
checked.

Newsworks

identifies its White

House source only as “Dope Throat”.




The felony
that

fizzled

(ZNS) A northern California attor-
ney, who called a press conference and
then taped two marijuana plants to the
office door of a county district attorney,
is sitting at home, waiting to be arrested.

In fact, Ed Frey of Ukiah, Califor-
nia, wants to be arrested and charged—
but the District Attorney’s office has re-
fused to do so....at least so far. .

Frey believes that state and Federal
laws which prohibit the cultivation of pot
plants in the privacy of one’s home are
unconstitutional. As a result, he carred in
a bundle of home-grown weed to the
Sheriff’s Department last month and de-
manded to be arrested.

Instead, the Sheriff turned Frey
over to the District Attorney; and the
District Attorney merely cited him for
the non-criminal offense in California of
possessing a small amount of marijuana.

Frey insists he should be charged
under existing state and federal laws that
define the growing of pot as a felony. The
young attorney returned to the County
Courthouse on Thursday, this time dress-
ed as'a judge, telling police ahead of time
he would be there.

After speaking at length on the sub-
ject of why marijuana growing should be
permitted in private, Frey produced two
young plants he said he had grown, and
carefully taped them to the D.A.s front
door.

Even though police knew ahead of
time that he was coming, strangely
enough there was no one there to arrest
him ot charge him with anything. Frey
has retreated back to his home, where
he says he is cultivating some great hemp,
hoping that the gendarmes will bust him.

~ Atomic
secrets

Four drug smugglers in England

-needed to spice up their lives a bit, so-

they loaded danger with more danger
and smuggled 500 pounds of marijuana
in highly radioactive nuclear waste
drums.

A Pakistani, who worked for a
nuclear pipe-testing company, hid the
weed in the cork tops of the containers
and transported “them (on company
time) from Pakistan to England
himself. He and his partners , two other
,Pakistanis, an Englishman, and an
{American woman, removed the dope-
filled cork before he dropped dff the
containers, with new tops, at ihe waste
destruction site:. 5

Drug agents’ orxgma!ly Started
following' the group when marijuana
was found in a box of ladies'shawls they
were shipping.

Dynamitedope

(ZNS) Police on the island’ of Ha-
waii are charging that a “marijuana” war
.there has escalated to deadly proportions.

Officers near the town of Kurtis-
town said last week that large pot fields
on the island—some yielding as much as
100,000 pounds of cultivated high grade
smoke—was being booby trapped with
dynamite by illicit growers.

The Yipster Times

‘Thousands march up State Street to the steps of the Capitol' building in Madison, Wisconsin.

‘Thousands march for pot,
freedom of spitin Madison

In Madison 6,000 weed-heads spilled
up the steps of the State Captiol Building,
demanding freedom for marijuana and
longtime smoke-in organizer Ben Masel.

Saturday, Oct. 2, was warm, with
fabulously clear skies. At 1:00 PM about
2,000 tokers took to the main drag (in
Madlson Wisc.) for a Nobody for Presi-
dent_Parade up to the lawn of the State
Capitol, where another 4,000 freex
waited at the Wisconsin Student Associa-
tion (WSA)/Official Smoke-in.

From the moment of assembly
at the State St. Mall thousands of free
joints were distributed by representatives

«of the Midwest Dealer’s Association
(MDA). It was homegrown, but folks
were astounded to see so much, for free,
during the drought.

WSA, MDA, Yippie! and NORML
got it all together to boost defense of Ben
Masel, organizer of many a Madison
smoke-in, against charges’ of spitting on
Scoop “the Poop” Jackson which may

cop him up to 4 years-at his Oct. 12 trial.

The implications of stifling the
rights of protesting against VIPs— “where
the action is”—were explained at the
Capitol Rally by Yippie Dana Beal who
called on people to show up at Ben’s trial.

NORML midwest coordinator Paul
Kuhn, of Chicago, and Madison Alder-
woman Carol Wuennenberg voiced more
traditional demands for legalization, or at
least decriminalization of marijuana. But
folks were most excited to hear— many
for the first time—Yippie demands for
full prosecution of all government agents
guilty of bugging, tapping, spying or

prying, plus demands for full amnesty
and cash reparatlons for the v1ct1ms

Madison’s “red mayor” Paul Sog]m
put only 4 officers on special patrol, who
insisted they were only there to handle
traffic,—“And this is the State Capitol.
We have no jurisdiction here.”

After a musical set by the Zoom rock
band, the stoned mob paraded thru the
Miffland area to a Nobody for President
Rally at Brittingham Park, on the shores
of Lake Monona. There, to the accom-
paniment of more music, raps urg-
ing that people turn up af Ben’s tri-
al, and good LSD, everyone partied
till after dark.

Psychedelic dentistry

(ZNS) A British dentist has taken
the pleasures of psychedelics out of the
closet and is putting them to work reduc-
ing pain. -

Magic mushroom manure massacre

Twenty persons, mostly U. of Texas
students, were arrested by Sheriff
Jimmy Nutt in Bastrop County, Texas,
when they were found poking around
in cow dung. The night before police
there had seized a ‘‘large amount”’ of
cow manure in a van driven by an 8-
year-old driver with 3 companions
when they were stopped for a traffic
violation. Along with the dried dung
were about 12 alleged ‘‘magic”
mushrooms. On the other hand, Sgt.
Lemuel Hunter mused, the mushrooms
could also be poisonous toadstools,
which also groew on cow manure.

“‘I.can see the patrolmen bringing in
the mushrooms, but not that other
stuff,”’ said Hunter, viewing it from a
goodly distance. “We’re not hurting
that bad foracase.”

He intended to have both manure and
mushrooms analyzed by the narcotics
crime lab, but guessed that the dried
patties would probably be ‘“‘marked to
destroy.’’

Widely known for its mushroom
.profusion, Bastrop County charged
most of the manure pokers with
trespassing and possession of a con-
trolled substance.

In this case, however, Doctor Alex
McMaster, of Middlesborough, England,
is not using drugs: he is administering
what he calls “psychedelic anesthesia”
through a pair of common ordinary gog-
gles.

McMaster has his dental patients
slip on a pair of goggles, which are hook-
ed up to an electric current. When the

current is switched on, instantly thous-

ands of tiny, flashing, colored lights sud-
denly appear on the goggles—in much the
same manner as a tab of L.S.D.—simulat-
ing a psychedelic trip. Within seven sec-
onds, McMaster reports, the goggle-wearer
suddenly loses the ability to feel almost
no pain.

The secret of the dentist’s success,
he says, is that the electrical eurrent
stimulates the brain to produce what is
called alpha waves. These are the brain
waves which produce deep relaxation,
and often sleep in the body.

-
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~ Mitchell Werbell Il
Master Smuggler or Nixon’s Hitman?

FRIENDS AND

ENEMIES

IN HIGH PLACES

by David Miller

On September 3 arms merchant and
- CIA operative Mitchell WerBell III and
four co-defendants were acquitted by a
Miami federal jury of conspiring to im-
port several tons of Colombian marijuana
to South Florida. A drug trial ending in
acquittal is a fairly common occurrence,
but this one was unique in that defense
lawyers attempted to subpoena Richard
Nixon to prove the defendants had been
part of a “White House operation” and
had been licensed to kill.

The Miami Five consisted of Cleve-
land Teamsters official John Hard; Cleve-
land financier Morton Franklin; Deerfield
Beach, Florida arms dealer Gerald Cun-
ningham; Raleigh, North Carolina busi-
nessman William Bell; and WerBell, an as-
sociate of E. Howard Hunt who has
served as an arms dealer/soldier of for-
tune in such hot spots as Guatemala
(1954) and Santo Domingo (1965).

WerBell, according to attorney Ed-
win Marger, “would never get involved in
a conspiracy to imporf marijuana” but
has been involved in “‘guns, revolutions,
maybe even assassinations.” Marger claim-
ed Werbell had been given *carte
blanche” by former President Nixon and
former White House plumber Egil Krogh
to halt drug traffic, “including the assas-
sinations of people high up in the drug
business.”

WerBell and associates were charged
with conspiring in April-November 1975
to import and distribute = “multi-ton”
loads of marijuana, each man allegedly
making a $100,000 profit on the deaI:
Marger claimed Egil Krogh, a *‘general™
in Nixon’s “war on drugs,” had recruited
WerBell; Krogh and John Ehrlichman
were subpoenaed to appear at the trial
(Judge Peter Fay ruled there was “insuf-
ficient evidence™ to subpoena Nixon) and
Krogh testified on August 31.

According to Marger, Krogh was au-
thorized to recruit WerBell by Drug En-
forcement Administration (DEA) senior
official Lucien Conein, “a past assassina-
tion expert.” Marger claimed Conein
bought weapons for WerBell “for the ex-
press purpose of assassinating drug lead-
ers,” adding. “Lou Conein and WerBéll
were working together, putting together
assassination devices for the DEA.”

Krogh denied knowing anything
about White House involvement in Wer-
Bell's drug dealing. Asked about Conem,
Krogh explained: “I met Lucien Conein
in 1971. We were introduced by Howard
Hunt, who had been an employee of the
CIA. He indicated that Conein had been a
CIA employee.”

Krogh added he had asked Conein
“to do a paper as a consultant on how to
increase their effectiveness in stopping
drugs in France and Southeast Asia.”
Krogh himself worked for several CIA
fronts, including the Stanford Research
Institute, ‘before becoming Nixon’s
White House liaison with the Bureau of
Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs, the pre-
decessor of the DEA.

Despite Krogh’s denial of govern-
ment complicity with the Miami Five, the
case was virtually closed the day before,
when DEA record-keeper Brent Eaton
took the witness stand. Eaton told ‘de-
fense lawyer Barry Halpern that Gerald
Cunningham had met with DEA inform-
ant Ken Burnstine—a convicted cocaine
smuggler from Fort Lauderdale who died
in a very convenient plane crash in June
of this year—and that this meeting was
listed in DEA files.

ant) forced the prosecution to dismiss
three charges of the 11-count indictment,
concerning alleged meetings with “confi-
dential informant” Burnstine.

Shortly after the acquittal of the
Five, a Justice Department spokesman
stated “key witness” Burnstine’s June
16th Mojave Desert crash had “seriously
weakened” the prosecution case. Burn-
stine, about to be sentenced for an unre-
lated cocaine-importing conviction, had
offered to identify his drug connections
to DEA agents; the mysterious crash of
pilot Burnstine’s plane put an end to all

that. In a Sept. 3 closing argument to the

jury, defense lawyer Roland Braswell
said the government had “gotten its sig-
nals crossed” and decided to “silence
WerBell;” the jury, impressed by descrip-
tions of DEA “assassination devices” and
“safe-houses,” agreed with Braswell.
Meanwhile, the DEA has admitted

Werbell had been given carte blanche
_ by Nixon to halt drug fraffic,
including assassinating

people high up in the drug business.

Marger then showed Eaton an alleg-
ed DEA receipt for $975 paid to WerBell
to share a “safe-house” provided by the
government; Eaton denied knowledge of
such a “safe-house” but admitted the re-
ceipt looked authentic. Thus FEaton
grudgingly implied government sponsor-
ship of WerBell & Co., and, as most of
the trial’s additional testimony was rather
inconclusive, this insured the acquittal
of the Five, -

Twenty taped phone conversations
between the defendants and DEA under-
cover agents were played in court by
prosecutor Karen Atkinson, but most of
the WerBell-Burnstine tapes were ruled
“irrelevant™ by Judge Fay. Burnstine’s
death (which prevented the indictment
of Republican state representative Randy
Avon of Fort Lauderdale as a co-defend-

at least 56 of its agents are former CIA
agents, a startling statement that makes
one wonder about the WerBell-Krogh-
Conein connection, Egil Krogh in 1971
told psychiatrist Daniel X. Freedman:
“Anyone who opposes us we’ll destroy.
As a matter of fact, anyone who doesn’t
support us we'll destroy.”

If convicted felon Egil Krogh seems
like an odd choice for a narcotics official,
Lucien Conein is an even odder choice for
head of the DEA’s Special Operations
Branch. As a CIA operative in Vietnam in
1965-66, Conein allowed Nguyen Cao
Ky to make a deal with “Saigon’s Corsi-
can underworld” to ship heroin to Eur-
ope (Alfred W. McCoy, The Politics of
Heroin in Southeast Asia, p. 212).

According to Andrew St. George
(LA Free Press, 2-13-76, p. 7):

In 1954, a deep-cover CIA team
went off to Hanoi under Lt. Col.
Lucien Conein, a veteran of num-
berless secret operations and one of
Mitch WerBell’s closest lifelong
friends. Code-named “Blackhawk,”
the Conein mission was to harass
and decimate the Vietminh leader-
ship, that is, the new Communist
rulers of North Vietnam who were
just beginning to get organized af-
ter their long string of guerrilla vic-
tories against the French. The or-
ders called for “sabotage .. . inter-
diction of transport and communi-
cations. . , elimination of Vietminh
cadres where conditions permit.”

According to George Crile III
(Washington Post, 6-13-67, p. Cl1), in
1955 Conein “helped Ngo Dinh Diem
consolidate his power in South Vietnam”
and eight years later Conein “was the
U.S. embassy’s liaison with the cabal of .
generals who murdered Diem.” According
to Crile, Conein “has been accused of en-
gineering the assassination. . . the CIA
considered him an unstable commodity
and sent him back to Washington. But he
soon managed to return as part of an elite
10-man counterinsurgency team under
Gen. Lansdale which also included Daniel
Ellsberg, then still a war hawk.”

In 1971 E. Howard Hunt, having
“retired” from the CIA the previous year,
recruited Conein for the White House,
where the Nixon “Plumbers” were being
led by Egil Krogh. Hunt (an OSS associ-
ate of Conein in World War II) and
Charles Colson were then attempting to
discredit the late. John F. Kennedy by
forging State Department cables in order
to blame Kennedy for the death of Diem.
Conein obliged Colson by granting NBC-
TV an interview, claiming JEK had been
responsible for the murder of Diem in
’63.

Shortly thereafter, Conein and
Krogh became key members of Nixon’s
“war on drugs,” with Hunt, G. Gordon
Liddy and Bernard Barker participating
in Operation Ruby, Operation Opal,
Operation Crystal, Operation Diamond
and Operation Sapphire as part of John
Mitchell’s $1 million Gemstone program.
According to Crile in The Washington
Post: :

Barker recruited almost 200

former CIA Cuban agents and or-
ganized them into specialized units
for future operations. They includ-
ed intelligence and counterintelli-

gence groups and a street-fighting
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arm. Cubans Who had brawled for
the Agency at Communist and anti-
Communist rallies across Latin
America. And there was a particu-
larly sensitive sector known as the
Action team—an old CIA term for
units with paramilitary skills includ-
ing demolition and assassination.

After the 1972 Watergate break-in,
Ehrlichman and Krogh transferred Conein
out of the White House to the Bureau of
Narcotics and Dangerous Drugs, which
became the Drug Enforcement Adminis-
tration on July 1, 1973, Conein became
head of DEA’s Special Operations
Branch, assigned to create worldwide in-
telligence networks for the agency.

In 1974 Conein acquired a “safe-
house® from the CIA at 1028 Connecti-

‘cut Avenue in Washington, D.C. In this

“safe-house” Conein purchased weapons
from the now-defunct B.R. Fox Compa-
ny; the weapons included exploding tele-
phones, flashlights and cameras to be
used “for anonymous murder” according
to Crile. The assassination devices were
part of Conein’s plan for sending CIA
veterans (former paramilitary case offi-
cers with the Special Operations Division
who had fought in Vietnam) into Mexico
to assassinate suspected drug dealers. The
plan fell through, though Conein got his
weapons from the inventor/dealer he had
known since the 1940s: Mitchell WerBell.

WerBell, one of the world’s most
successful manufacturers of silencers, was
a business partner of Conein as recently
as 1974, according to the Senate Perman-
ent Investigations Subcommittee. At that
same point in time WerBell was negotiat-
ing an arms deal with Robert Vesco, who
moved to Costa Rica after swindling
$224 million from the Investors Overseas
Services and making an illegal $250,000
contribution to the Committee to Re-
Elect the President in 1972.

WerBell agreed to build an Ingram

submachine gun factory in Costa Rica;
Sen. Henry Jackson (D-Washington),
chairman of the Permanent Investigations

Subcommittee, claimed the Ingrams are’

“not the normal military defense wea-
pons” but are, instead, “used for covert
purposes. . . mini-revolutions or coups or

_what have you.”

Mitchell WerBell II in 1967 with part of his weapons collection.

Jackson and his staff heard testi-

mony from swindler Frank Peroff, who

had made a deal with the DEA in 1973 to
become an undercover agent in order to
break up a heroin ring. Peroff told Jack-
son’s Subcommittee the DEA ended the
investigation—and nearly had Peroff
killed—when it was discovered Robert

Photo by Wide Warid

Vesco was the financier of the heroin
scheme. DEA spokesmen told Jackson
the agency had “lost’ most of its file on
Vesco and admitted. DEA agents had
flown from Los Angeles to New Jersey to
de-bug Vesco’s home and office. Al-
though L.H. Whittemore tells this story
in his book Peroff, the media has general-
ly suppressed reports of an episode that
is rather embarrassing to the DEA.
George Crile in The Washington Post ac-
cuses “the Ford Justice Department” of
refusing to investigate the Vesco-DEA
plot “in the midst of an election year,
though in January, 1975 Connecticut
Senator Lowell Weicker, a Liberal Repub-
lican who served on the Ervin Committee
investigating Watergate, made public the
Conein-DEA assassination devices.”

Why, then, was WerBell indicted by
the federal government? In the May,
1976 Yipster Times, A.J. Weberman
wrote that WerBell, a CIA colleague of
E. Howard Hunt and the Watergate Cu-
bans, was an anti-Castro zealot (WerBell
attempted to launch an invasion of Cuba
in 1965, but the Castro government cap-
tured two of his men, shooting one and
imprisoning the other) who stood in the
way of a 1977 detente with Fidel Castro:
just as WerBell/Hunt associate Rolando
Masferrer was killed last fall shortly after
opposing Undersecretary of State William
Rogers’ moves toward recognition of Cas-
tro’s government, WerBell was set up by
the government. The government’s plan
to put WerBell on ice backfired, however.
when Kenneth Burnstine’s plane crashed
Interestingly, a mysterious plane crash ir
December, 1972 killed Mrs. E. Howard
Hunt and prevented an intensive investi-
gation into Watergate clandestine pay-
offs; the newly appointed Undersecre-
tary of Transportation then refused to
allow an intensive investigation into the
plane crash that killed Mrs. Hunt.

The Undersecretary’s name was Egil

Krogh.
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Punks in Leather
From Liverpool

The Yipster Times

an interview with
the Beatles first manager

When the world first met the Beatles, the four rock revivalists were depicted as prep school
aristocrats, smart in suits and gracious in style, with soft, smooth edges and winning smiles. Al-
lan Williams, their original manager (now touring America with his book, The Man Who Gave
The Beatles Away) had a different view of the Beatles—as social anarchists in black leather jack-
ets who were rough, raucous and sometimes crude, playing a rebellious music. David Peel, the
infamous New York rock troubador who once played with John Lennon and Yoko Ono, talked
with Williams about the prehistory of the group that has attained a myithological stature in our
culture.

YT:
AW:
XF:

AW:

YT:
AW:

by David Peel

What years were you associated with the Beatles?
From about May 1959 to August 1961.

Kids today seem to have the impression that the
Beatles got their start with Brian Epstein. But
this isn’t really true.

I don’t knock Brian Epstein because of what he
did for the Beatles at that time. It’s a fact of his-
tory that he fell in love. I think basically he fell in
love with them homosexually because he was a
well known homosexual. He was working in his
father’s record store, the biggest record depart-
ment store in Liverpool and T had just finished
with the Beatles, I’'d had a row with John Lennon
in Hambutg over commission. And that’s when
they made their famous record with Tony Sheri-
dan, you know, “My Bonnie Lies Over the
Ocean”. You know, if I said to you what club do
you connect with the Beatles, what would you
say? !

I’d say the Cavern.

Brian became interested in the Beatles because
they were playing in the Cavern. And even the
Cavern in those days wouldn’t have the Beatles ex-
cept for the sheer pressure from the kids in Liver-
pool. The kids demanded that the Beatles play
there. The fellow who owned the Cavern couldn’t
stand beat music and rock and roll. He was a mod-
ern jazz fan. In fact there was one group there
called Rory Storm and the Hurricanes and their
drummer was Ringo Starr. The owner used to fine
them if they played a rock ’n roll number, take
money off their wages. So you can imagine it was
a battle for the groups to get into the Cavern. The
first owner, Alan Sittner, refused to accept that
this new music was taking over and he went bust
because nobody bothered going to the Cavern. It
was the second owner, Ray MacFalls, who got the
Beatles to play there through a fellow called Bob
Wooler, who was my mate—he used to work for
me in a club. But getting back to Brian Epstein, he
was bored—he didn’t like working in his father’s
shop. He tried actirlg as a career but failed misera-
bly—he couldn’t make it. So when all these kids
from the Cavern kept coming in daily, like an ava-

AW:

AW:

YT:

AW:

lanche asking for the one record that he’d never
heard of, he decided to go down to the Cavern and
it was a traumatic experience to go into this dark
cellar. You see, the Cavern was a fruit market be-
fore, and' there was no ventilation. I can remem-
ber one time when the Beatles played there, when
the sweat and the moisture was dripping so much
it got on their amps and blew them, so they
couldn’t play until the amps dried out. They start-
ed singing, they got the audience to.do a sing-along
show until the amps were repaired and once the
amps were repaired the girls started to scream—
you ceuldn’t even hear the music.

When did Brian Epstein first see the Beatles?

He came down there one day during a lunch time
session. They used to have lunch time sessions
then.

What time was that?

It started about 11:00 and it would go on to
about 3:00. Then they'd have a break and they’d
start the evening sessions about 7:00 and go on to
about 3:00 in the morning. But this was without
booze you see, the club was getting around the
law by not serving booze. All the girls who worked
in the factories would go in there. It was an amaz-
ing sight; they’d all be sitting there eating their
fish and chips and the Beatles would be playing
their hearts out. It was a lunchtime session.
The Beatles, or any group, would be eating fish
and chips on stage as well. That was the scene.

And that was when Brian Epstein came in the
picture?

He came at that time, when the Beatles were
back from their second stint in Germany. They
were in their leather gear and I think that leather
attracts homosexuals, and Brian was just knocked
out by them. Their two years in Hamburg had
really made them. And he recognized something
that he couldn’t put his finger on but he wanted to
be a part of it. So he got the boys to come to his
office which -they-were very impressed with, and
he did the deal with them.

(continued on next page)
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AW: No, I'd heird of him but I’d never met him. I
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met him when he came round to my club to ask
me about the Beatles and I said as musicians
they’re great, but don’t trust themg, After what
they did to me, I wouldn’t touch them with a
fucking barge pole. The amazing thing about it,
although later he wrote about how wrong I was,
Epstein never signed a contract with them. He
could have walked away from them at any time.
But my experience was with the wild times in
Hamburg, and the wild times in Liverpool. You
know we used to have bull fights, we’d bring a bull
into the club.

Did you bring the Beatles to Hamburg?

Yeah, when I first met the Beatles they couldn’t
even afford to go there. I had to lend them 15
pounds to buy clothes because they had no clothes
for uniforms. They went to some big store like
Woolworth’s or Marks & Spencers and they got
the sneakers—baseball boots we call them—and
black pants and black shirts, and that was their
uniform.

Didn’t they get paid?

No, the bread in Liverpool was very bad in those
days. The Cavern used to pay a five-piece group

five pounds. That’s the sort of money that was -

around. I did very well because when [ started
them out I was getting them ten pounds and even
12 poun

“The Yipster Times

- Liverpool and Brian sort of looked at me one

night and smiled. And he said, “Can I tell you
something, Alan?” And I said, “Go on, Brian,
yeah.” He said, “ You know that song, ‘She
Loves You, Yeah, Yeah, Yeah’ and he said “that
was taken from you because you always say,
yeah, yeah, yeah”. And so I.was the inspiration
for yeah, yeah, yeah.

YT: Something I'd like to clear up, because this is

something that people are really curious about, is
how the Beatles got their name.

The Public Health

authorities were going to
give me aclosing order
because all the girls had

written graffiti onthe

toilets like John Lennon

has the biggest prick
in Liverpool:

Is Paul deaqy

No, ; :
John, and Pete Best coﬂectpt": tendmg, While

YT:

AW:

i

You mean in Hamburg.

No, this was in Liverpool. For there were so many
groups, see. There were no d.j.’s. When the group
finished, the music was dead and people just start-
ed talking. Later on it developed into something
that absolutely killed the scene altogether, when
the canned music dj.’s came in. You know I'd
like to form a club to shoot all the fucking dj.’s

- in the world and then we’d get back to real music

YT

Aw:

again.
But you handled their affairs in Germany.

Yeah, yeah, yeah. Can I tell you a siory about
yeah, yeah, yeah? Well, I was in the Press Club in

AW: The Beatles .got their name by themselves. I think

it was John’s idea, I can’t stick my neck out but
I'm fairly sure it was. The confusion comes be-
cause a lot of people say they were called the
Silver Beatles in the early days. When I approach-
ed them, or rather when John Lennon approached
me, and said, “When are you going to do some-
thing for us, Allan?” I said, “Who’s us,” and he
said he’s got this group. I said “What’s their
name,” and he said “The Beatles”—it sounded
good. You have to remember the word beat in
those days, it was a play on words. They wanted
me to manage them, and they had done a few fav-
ors for me. Like, would you believe it, I had a
notice from the Public Health authorities about
_my toilet, the ladies’ toilets were a disgrace and

YT:
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they were going to give me a closing order because
all the girls had written graffitti on the toilets like
“John Lennon has the biggest prick in Liverpool.”
And somebody else would write, “No, he hasn’t”
and so I had to get it off. And so knowing that
John and Stu Sutcliffe were from the Art College
I asked them if they’d decorate the toilets for me,
and I'd give them ten pounds. And so I had the
best psychedelic toilets in the whole of England.
That was my first involvement with them. -

How did you first meet the Beatles; I mean there
had to be a time ... ?

Well, I'll tell you about the time. You see, in Liv-
erpool in the *50’s all the pubs or taverns, I think
you call them here, closed at 10:00. At 10:00 you
may be able to go to a dance hall, you know, the
slow-slow, quick-quick, slow sort of ball-room
dancing. And after that was finished, when the last
tram left Long Street, the town was dead. And
anybody, anything that moved after midnight—the
police used to have this cliche—was a criminal,
must be. ‘And this is why there was sort of a social
‘evolution—people like me, and there were about
six of us, we couldn’t go along with this system.
I’d been hitch-hiking on the Continent, in Europe
and I was going to jazz cellars on the San Michele
in Paris and things like that. And I said, we can’t
close at 10:00. This is why there was so much ten-
sion, as if things were going to explode. The vio-
lence in Liverpool, wasn’t like violence here.
Toughs didn’t have guns, but they had bicycle
chains, razor blades in the hat to flick in some-
body’s face, and things like that. It was just a bar-
rellful of frustration. On the Continent kids would
be up all night until 2:00 just listening to good
jazz or good rock 'n’ roll music. And a fellow start-
ed a club in London called the Two Eyes Coffee
Bar. This was where Tommy Steele was discover-
ed. I went down and found out from the fellow
who owned this club, Torhmy Littlewood, how he
could get away with it (the law). He said as long as
you call it a club and you're serving soft drinks,
there’s no law that can stop ycu and I said great,
that’s just what we want. So about six of us start-
ed coffee bar clubs in Liverpool and the police
hated us but we made a breakthrough. We proved
that we could do it without booze and we virtually
stopped the violence overnight. Because the kids
were so appreciative. We told them, look. any
fights and the police will close us and we’ll be back
where we started. It was called the coffee bar cult
where people could just meet and talk over a cof-
fee or a coke and this started a sort of social.revo=
lution avhich just spread later to all over the world.
Now most of them (the coffee bars) were just do-
ing coffee and maybe a jukebox but I started the
first one off with live music. T had a West Indian
steel band. I got to be a sort of an “in”* club for
musicians.

Which club was this, by the way?

The Jacaranda Club. All the musos (that’s an ab-
breviation we have here) started to come there
and the art school crowd. including John Len-
non and Stuart Sutcliffe because they liked
my atmosphere. That’s how I first got to know
them.

When did Paul McCartney become involved?

Well, Paul used to have a group called the Quar-
reymen. The Beatles were called the Quarreymen
when they had just Paul and a pal of Lennon’s
called Pete Shottner. They really started off as
a skiffle band.

What’s that?

Well, in England, when you were too poor to af-
ford instruments, your bass would be a wash-
board. But that’s how it all started, with the
skiffle sound and, then it went on to rock’ 'n’
roll, Paul was going to a school called the Local
Institute—both Paul and George were at the Local
Institute—and John and Stu were at the Art Coll-
ege. Paul met George at the Institute and asked
him to join the group. He brought George around
to meet John and George was the better guitarist;
he knew more chords than John.

Sometime I must tell you about the legend of Stu
Sutcliffe who’s really a very beautiful character.
Well, you know so many people claim to be the
fifth Beatle. The most sickening was when I read
in Strawberry Fields that this Murray K (or some-
thing like that) and he interviewed the Beatles and
he calls himself the fifth Beatle. Well that’s the big-
gest fucking rip-off I heard of in all my life. And
he poses as the fifth Beatle. There were five Beat-
les—originally , Stuart Sutcliffe was the bass player.
He wasn’t even a musician, he was an artist. And if
you had seen his paintings, you would cry. He was
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on¢ of the most beautiful people—and this was the
reason he was with the Beatles—because John Len-
non had respect for him. And John Lennon had no
respect for anybody unless they were intellectually
above him or on his level, and Stuart Sutcliffe was
above him. And he loved him, you know. Later on
it all changed, when they became musically sort of
involved, and the novelty went out of carrying
Stuart Sutcliffe because Stuart couldn’t ever play
or record. He was so embarrassed, he used to turn
his back on the audience.

Was he responsible for their long hair?

Yes, Stuart Sutcliffe was responsible for all their
wayout gear. And would you believe it, you know,
that I've got a film where Bill Harry, the editor of
Newsweek says that “Oh, these Liverpool people,
they’ve got to change. They look too scruffy,
they’ve got to wear smart suits.” And I wince
when I see this film, you know because it goes
back to what I know the scene as. Nobody would
wear smart suits and I know John Lennon has nev-
er, ever forgiven Brian Epstein for putting them in
fueking smart suits. I mean, you Americans
thought the Beatles were clean-cut and nice guys.
I could tell you, like John Lennon used to freak
out at parties in Hamburg. In the middle of parties
he used to drop his pants and shit on the floor and
stomp his cigarette out in it. Maybe Brian Epstein
was right; you would never have accepted the
Beatles in this vein, you know. ;

What I can’t understand though, with the Beatles
being Teddy boys, or beatniks, wouldn’t having
long hair be the equivalent of being effeminate or
girlish? I know in America it would have at that
time.

Oh, yeah, yeah. In Liverpool it was never effemin-
ate, but if you moved outside of Liverpool . . . .

One thing I wanted to know was about Pete Best.
The three of them kicked him out of the Beatles
and they put Ringo in instead. Did all four of
them not like Pete or something? Who was re-
sponsible, or did Brian Epstein think Best wasn’t
good enough?

As far back as the Hamburg days, when [ wanted a

drummer for the Beatles, they hadn’t a drummer. .

They went through about three drummers, you
know. I said “Well, we’ve got this great job, going
to Hamburg, try and find a drummer. They were
playing in a coffeebar called the Kasbar which
was run by Mrs. Best, who was Pete’s mother, We
needed a drummer and he was what you’d call a
scratch drummer. It was an emergency and we
needed a drummer, so they all went over to Ham-
burg. And his personality clashed with the Beatles.
He was a guy who couldn’t compete with John
Lennon’s intellectual standards and of course, if
he coflldn’t compete with John Lennon’s intellec-
tual standards, he had to go. It was as simple as
that, that’s why the Beatles lost most of their
drummers. “Our dumb friends the drummers,”
they were classified as.

Ringo isn’t exactly an intellectual either. Why him
then? :

No way he’s an intellectual. He’s as thick as two
fucking planks. When they really decided they had
a chance of making it they dropped Pete like a hot
potato. I sent over another group at this time to
Hamburg to the same club where the Beatles were
playing. The name of this group was Rory Storm
and the Hurricanes. Rory Storm’s drummer was
Ringo and Ringo used to sit in with Beatles and
they got on well with Ringo. So when Brian decid-
ed that he would manage them, the first thing that
they said was well, you’ve got to sack Pete then
because we can’t get along with him. And they did
it in a sort of snide way that left it to Brian Ep-
stein to fire the bullets. Then they hired Ringo.

I heard Pete Best had a really big following.

He redly did have a big following. He had this
image of being mean, moody. Mean, moody and
magnificent but he was just fucking dumb, you
know.

What was the typical gig, like in Germany. An
hour?

I can show you the contract, I've got the original
contract here if you want to blow your mind out.
They would start on a Saturday at 6:30 and they
would play till 8:00. They would play an hour and
a half and then have a fifteen minute break. Then
they would go right on and play until 3:00. People
will ask me, “How can we become like the Beat-
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1es?” I’d tell them the Beatles did it by worki'n'g
these long fucking hours. That’s where they stock-
ed up all the material.

What would you tell a group if they asked you
what they could do to better themselves?

You know it’s the old-fashioned advice—fucking
work. Hard work never killed anybody you know.
Groups say to me now, and they do two half-
hour sessions, in between the fucking d.j. playing
and they say to me, how do we improve and I say
to them well, you get rid of the fucking dj. and
you play all night. There’s nothing else to it. I
used to work the bottoms off the Beatles.

You know it’s funny, but even in a club here
everybody plays everybedy else’s music.

That’s why the Beatles rebelled and at the time
that the Beatles were hitting it, all Liverpool
groups were playing the Shadows music, all this
two-step business. The Beatles came on and crash-
ed the whole fucking scene.

What was their original music, was any of it re-
corded later on?

Well, I've got a tape of it.
Were their original songs good?
Yeah.

What do you think about what’s happening with
the Beatles now?

They got into the hands of the big boys—the
whole thing got out of hand. How can you take
four ordinary boys and move them from the
streets into fame? What education have they had
with wheeling and dealing in high finance? It was
the wheelers and dealers that fucked the Beatles
up. I was doing a lecture with a guy called Richard
Dileto who worked for Apple as sort of the house-
boy hippie, for lack of a better word. All of those
people who pretended they loved the Beatles and
Apple—they all screwed them up. They almost put
them in bankruptcy. You know people were going
into that office and walking out with IBM type-
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writers. People were signing their names to auto-
mobiles, and they made deals with travel agents
to go on holidays to the Bahamas and places like
that. Even the lowest fellow in the business was
stripping the lead off the roof because of devalua-
tion. These Apple freaks that worked with and
loved the Beatles were taking gold discs off the
walls and fucking pinching tapes. It was really,
really fucking sad that the Beatles went into busi-
ness. They weren’t businessmen before. Could you
cope with it? They were clutching at straws be-
cause they were going to go bankrupt and Allen
Klein came along and he was obviously a busi-
nessman—he’d done some sort of dealings with the
Rolling Stones. Paul was going out with Linda
Eastman at the time.

Would you like to see them back together again, or
would you just like to let it be?

No, the legend is—just the legend is enough.

You said you talked to Paul McCartney at the
Spectrum and he said the Beatles would never get
back together. What's the story on that?

You know there’s no story. I said, “Look Paul,
everywhere I go there’s two questions. One, ‘Why
did I give up the Beatles?” and two, ‘Are the Beat-
les going to get together again?’ I answer no all
the way along the line. What do you say Paul?”
He said, “Definitely no.” I said, “Can I quote you
on that,?” He said, “Yeah.” So here you have it
right from the horses’ mouth, you can read all
sorts of reports in the papers but he said no, none
of us want to get together again.

Well, we’re coming to the conclusion. Is there any-
thing you'd like to say to America before we close
off?

To the people of the Village, you know I’ve seen
this scene you’ve created and you know for Christ
sake, don’t lose it. What is going to happen, and
I’m going to tell you exactly what happened in
Liverpool, that because you are creative and popu-
lar, and you’ve had a lot of publicity all these peo-
ple will move in on you. We call them trendies. All
these people are well-heeled and they will move in
on you and you won'’t even notice it. And sudden-
ly the Village will become dead because it will be
full of people posing as original people from the
Village and all they are is, sort of, deck heads. You
will be taken over and the Village will become a
freak town and that’s the end of it. That’s really
the end because well, can you imagine going into
what was really an original scene and seeing peo-
ple posing around with the most expensive jeans
and denims and sweaters, talking with an accent
that you can’t even understand because they want
to be in on the “in” scene? And they just destroy
the scene. I’ve seen this happen in Carnaby Street,
I’ve seen this happen in Liverpool. All you really
have to do is find another place to move into.
(Loud burp.) That’s my trade mark. Good-by.



THE PIRATE SHIP

Gallons of golden brew flowed with a vengeance into the
turamies of Angels and their fellow revellers last September 15
as everybody went for a cruisin' (not for a bruisin’) for seven
hours up the Hudson River on the S.S. Duchess. The Hell’s
Angels threw the party, and The Jerry Garcia Band shared
the bill with Bo Diddley and Elephant’s ‘Memory. All hands
on deck could see the rwilight Manhattan skyline, A splendid
time and tanks of nitrous oxide were shared by all (who could
afford the $15 ticket.)

Photo by Cralg Sliverman
BO DIDDLEY

EqH Ll mrmerd reck

The Yipster Times

-
CIA

Don’t look back
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Angel warns photographer to stop taking pix.
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by ROBERT MITCHELL

A group calling itself the Commit-
tee to Free Scooter Herring has just an-
nounced a boycott of Capricorn Records
by all rock fans outraged by the recent
conviction and  sentencing of John
“Scooter™ Herring on charges of selling
cocaine to Gregg Allman. Scooter was

W@ given 75 years (might as well be life),

based on testimony given by rock star
| Gregg Allman, who was given immunity

-

manager, it was Scooter’s responsibility
to see that reservations were confirmed,
bookings were right, and everything ran
smoothly, and to make sure that the rock
superstar had dope. Although they were
friends; an employer-employee relation-
ship existed between them. Gregg had the
money, and he was in charge. To further
entwine their lives, Allman loaned Scoot-
er $4500 for a down payment to pur-
chase a modest home for his wife and
family. He also executed a second mort-
gage on the property to secure the loan,
and have further economic leverage over
his -road manager (if he didn't score for
the boss, not only would he lose his job,
he might lose his house.)
In its March issue, the Yipster
Times reported exclusively that
1) Gregg Allman had squealed to
the grand jury
2) Capricorn President Phil Wal-
den was mysteriously excused
from testifying before the same
grand jury after Allman decided
to testity, and .
3) Yipster Times revealed Phil Wal-
den’s connections with former
Georgia Governor Jimmy Carter.
Walden, the Mr. Wizard behind
Capricorn Records’ phenomenal success,
had applied his Midas touch to the Presi-
dential aspirant’s fledgling campaign. He
literally saved it from going down the
drain by raising large sums of money for
Carter, getting Allman and other Capri-
corn artists to do benefit concerts. Car-
ter owed Walden a great deal, this we
know. With a grand jury investigation
L breathing down his neck, it is not unreas-
onable to assume that Walden might ap-
proach his influential friend, the ex-gov-

b mans road.
r of vears. As road

WALDEN, and THE ALLMAN FAMILY

ernor, to see if his good offices might be
of assistance. Furthermore, Carter would
have to be informed about the investiga-
tion, because it would be politically em-

~{ barrassing for one of his key financial ad-

visors to be called as witness before a
grand jury investigating cocaine smug-

gling. Speculation ran high on why Gregg

§ Allman, after refusing to testify twice be-

fore the grand jury, finally decided to

. “tell all”. Many feel that Allman was

caught in a three-way squeeze between
Walden, Carter, and the Georgia Prose-
cutor’s office. The prominent theory is
that when he was named as a witness,
Walden went to Carter to inform him of
the possible political embarassment, and
to ask for help. Carter contacted the
prosecutor, who explained that they were

already too deeply involved in the investi-
gation, and couldn’t squash the subpeona..

However, if a substantial number of in-
dictments were handed down, they would
end the inyestigation without calling Wal-
‘den as a witness. -

By granting Allman immunity from
prosecution, they were able to strip him
of the protection of the 5th amendment
(self-incrimination) and force him to tes-
tify. Walden, using his influence over All-
man, urged him to testify, rather than
face contempt for not testifying.

Following Allman’s testimony 33in-
dictments were handed down. Primarily,
lower echelon people involved in the out-
er fringes of the Atlanta-Macon rock
scene were indicted. Scooter Herring was
low man on the totem pole.

Meanwhile, the Allman Brothers
Band have broken up, and Phil Walden
thinks that all Gregg needs is “one more

(Left to right) SCOOTER HERRING, PHII |
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gooda record’, but there are rumors that
Gregg should check into life insurance.

Phil Walden IS Capricon Records,
and was part of the decision-making pro-
cess in the politics of power that decided
the life of Scooter Herring was so insignif-
icant that he could be locked away for
the rest of his life to cover up a potential
embarrassment to a would-be President.
That is why the boycott is being called
against Capricorn Records. The commit-
tee expresses its apologies to Capricorn

artists like Charlie Daniels, Marshall Tuck--

Pastani‘an vibrations

Ragu-rock routs

Bubbling up into the music scene
like melted Parmesan cheese on a slice of
hot pizza, the native music of the most-
recently-exploited ethnic group, the Ja-
maican-Italians, is presently spilling over
into the top forty like an unwatched pot
of simmering spaghetti sauce. This funky
new music form, ragu-rock, has emerged
from a local religious cult, the Pastafari-
ans, whose religious doctrines are based
on the origin of the Jamaican-Ifalian cul-
ture itself. According to legend, they are
descendants of runaway slaves from
Christopher Columbus’ vessel, the Santa
Maria, who escaped to Jamaica with a

good supply of tomato paste and hot
spices.

The Pastafarians have become espe-
cially known for their near-constant use
of “herb”, or oregano, as we North Amer-
icans know it, as a religious sacrament.
An estimated 70% of the population uses
oregano in one form or another on a daily
basis, while only a handful of rich ragu
superstars manage to get away with pour-
ing bushels of the stuff onto the floor
and rolling around naked in it until they
turn green around the gills.

“De red lox is de best lox”, say the
opening lines from a recent ragu release

_eternial vigil for the airship to carry them

er, and Wet Willie, but suggests they look
for another record company, before some
fat cat decides that they too are expend-
able. The committee says they will be
leafletting record stores and concerts
where Capricorn artists are performing,
explaining the reason for the Capricorn
Boycott. Once again, in true Watergate
fashion, the wheels of justice turn in such
a way that the wealthy and influential,
who instigate illegal activities, pay for
their crimes with the lives of their subor-
dinates. '

reggae

on the Bagel label: This statement reveals
other theological influences which form a
major source of inspiration for aspiring
ragu song-writers. One song refers to the
belief that the Pastas actually represent
the lost tribe of black Israelites, while
still another sings praises to Jah, whom
they now worship in his reincarnated
form of the living Sammy Davis, Jr.
Another common theme, that of the

all “back to Harlem”, pervades the entire
spectum of ragu-rock today, but is prob-
ably best expessed musically on this san~
Ip, “Pastaman Vibration™.

™
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,'Main Street, Fairmont, Indiana—Dean’s hometown.

James Dean died on September 30, 1953,
This September 30 was the 21st anniversary of
his death. James Kusnir visited his grave last
Year at this time,

IU's a quet country bar on Main
Street, Fairmount, Indiana. Me and Joe
stopped here after pitching our tent in a
cornfield just outside town. “Two beers,”
I say to the bartender.

“You guys ain’t from around here
are ya?”

“No, just passing through” I half
expected him to say “You guys are here
cause of James Dean, ain’t you?’

But he didn’t.

“Ain’t nothin’ doin’ here. Noth-
ing .§$

Me and Joe shoot some pool over a
couple of beers. I talked Joe into driving
me here to Dean’s hometown for the
20th anniversary of his death. Now there
is nothing to do till morning except
watch Howard Cosell do the play by play
on Denver/Green Bay.

“Damn it, Jimmy, you got to get
yourself a job. Look at you. You ain’t
got no self respect.”

“I know, James, I used to, but I
died when that woman Ieft me.”

James and Jimmy are arguing next
to me at the bar. How many James’s and
Jimmys’ are in this town anyway?

“Shit,” say James. “You ain’t
never gonna get her back this way. Tell
you one thing. I ain’t never gonna wind
up like you. ’m gonna be somebody.”

Denver is up three points on Green
Bay. James is out-talking Cosell and Joe
is asleep on the bar. I'call it a night. What
a night. We-freeze our asses off in the
cornfield. In the morning we head back
to town for a breakfast of bacon, eggs

and coffee. A loyota pulls in front of
the cafe. Two guys with cameras hesitant-
Iy emerge, look around, and start shoot-
M8 “Dean freaks,” I say self-conscious-
ly to Joe. Ten minutes later they walk in-
to the cafe and order breakfast. I knew
they would. There’s no place else to go.
One of them asks the waitress directions
to the cemetery off Jonesboro Pike. Re-
luctantly, she tells them.

Me and Joe make small talk about
tonight’s Ali/Frazier fight—the Thrilla in
Manila. There seems to be a conspiracy in
town to forget Dean despite the constant
presence of his loyal pilgrims. We pay the
tab and wait in Joe’s Volkswagen for the
two in the cafe to finish breakfast.
“Hey,” 1 say as they pass the car, “Why
the pictures?”

They pale.

“It’s OK, I'm here for the Dean
story too.”

They " breathe easy, introducing
themselves as Dave Honor and Greg Wus-
tefeld, freelancers for Crawdaddy. Dave
sces my copy of David Dalton’s biogra-
phy on Dean lying on the dash and snaps
some pictures of it catching a reflection
of Main Street, Fairmount on the wind-
shield. We head for the cemetery. To the
left of the entrance is a brick pillar in-
scribed ‘James Dean’. The bronze bust
that once capped it has been stolen. Li-
brary: files with Dean memorabilia are im-
possible to keep. Everything gets taken.
No one is here. Only a gravekeeper who
doesn’t speak English but gets the mes-
sage. “Jiminy, Jiminy,” he says, pointing
the way. We pass a stream. The James
Dean Memorial Stream? Maybe it can be
bottled and sold to terminal adolescents.
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gel,CanYouHearMe?

The tombstone jolts us.

This is it—not the original, that was
chipped away years ago by pilgrims. This
is the second or third. Two shrubs, sup-
posedly planted by Jimmy’s grandfather,
flank the stone, their long roots an insur-
ance against body snatchers. The grass
here is worn away. Contrary to popular
belief, Jimmy is not buried beside his
mother. Her grave is in Grant Cemetery,
Marion, Indiana. This is Park Cemetery.

We are joined by John Simon who
is covering for a German periodical, John
Flynn and Melissa Farlow of the Louis-
ville Courier Journal and Times and Ed
Breen of the Marion Chronicle Tribune—
seven journalists in search of a story.

A gravekeeper comes by. “A day
don’t go by that someone ain’t here,”
he-says. “Jimmy was no taller than a girl.
They stacked his hair up for the movies
to make him look taller.”

A man appears from a van parked .

inside the cemetery alongside Jonesboro
Pike. Breen tells us that there are three
Germans inside the van. The only Eng-
lish they could speak was ‘Jimmy Dean’,
so the state troopers brought them here.
The man in the doorway walks over to
us. None of us understand German, but
we nod our head affirmatively whenever
the man says ‘Jimmy Dean’. We speak
loud English to him, an old American
trick employed upon unsuspecting illit-
erate foreigners to make them understand
our lingo. But even this fails. “Jimmy
Dean,” I say knowingly. The German
nods his head affirmatively.

“The most audacious thing James

Dean ever did,” says Breen, “was leave .

+
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James Dean’s grave

Fairmount.”

“Yeah, but that’s not what anyone
wants to hear,” says Flynn. I love the
story about the guy who came from the
Philadelphia Inquirer, that’s a classic.
The guy asks old Marcus Winslow, the
farmey, for an interview and Winslow says,
'm sorry, I'm busier than killing cats.’
You know, which is an old country say-
ing. Sq the dude goes back and writes
that one of Dean’s problems was that his
uncle killed cats. He concluded that he
found the key to the mystique of James
Dean—it was because the uncle killed
cats! And that’s when the Winslows clos-
ed the door and said ‘no more.”.”

“I asked this one guy here in Fais-
mount if he knew Jimmy Dean and he
says to me, ‘Jimmy Dean?—ain’t he the
guy who makes the sausage?”

“Hey, wait a minute, here’s another
non-photographer.”

Mrs. W. of Wisconsin caught Marcus
Winslow drinking a coke early this morn-
ing outside his son’s place of business.

“His son works at that implement
place up here. Markie Winslow, Jimmy’s
cousin. I went to talk to him at the imple-
ment company and here his father Marcus
was sitting: outside drinking a coke. He
says a lot of things he don’t like to talk
about because it brings back bad memor-
ies. We went to Marcus Winslow’s house
earlier in the morning about nine or ten
but he wasn’t there. When we got to the
implement company Marcus told us that
his wife was probably down in the base-
ment, that’s why she didn’t answer. He
said he was up here getting away from his
chores for a while. And he said that Jim-
my was a good little boy. People come up
to his house all hours of the night to talk
about James Dean and he can’t get away
from them. He don’t like it I guess.”

“How do you feel about all this?”
I ask Greg Wustefeld, freelancing for
Crawdaddy,

“I feel pretty cheap about if, but
only because of the way it’s turning out.
I don’t think my impulses are cheap. I
know my motives are sincere,

“May I quote you on that,” says
Flynn. :

his quote?™ I ask.
“Let’s all sue each other for mis-

e

“May I quote you on your quote of ™

quotes when this is all out,” says some- ===

body else. “Hey here comes the official
James Dean lunch wagon.”

Joe is back with the burgers and
cokes.

“Here come the California people
again,” says Greg. “Tell them to come
back after lunch.”

“We’re from California,” says the
man without being asked.

“We know, we saw the plates.”

Mr. and Mrs. M., both 35ish from
Valencia, California, believe that Dean is-
still alive. Mrs. M. is writing a book on the
subject. Ten days ago she had a heart
attack. Her doctor advised against travel.

“Supposedly, the ambulance driver
said that he was dead, but we talked to
Ollie Hunter, the cop at the scene wf;o
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says he was alive. There’s no copy of the
autopsy, and we don’t think Jimmy was
driving. Hunter says Rolf Wutherich, his
German mechanic, was behind the wheel.
We hear Wutherich is in jail in Germany
now, for trying to kill his wife."”

“Do either of you speak German?”
asks Breen. *“There’s three Germans in
that van.” He points a finger.

“He does,” Mrs. M. nods to her hus-
band. “Maybe they were Jimmy's pit
crew. You know, I just bet they were.”

- “Why don’t you go over and talk to
them?” says Breen to the husband. “Just
say, ‘Hey, Rolf" and see if one of them
turns around.”

“No, I bet he’s wise to that one,”
says Mr. M.

“Well, see what you can do,” says
Breen.

“You know,” says Mrs, M., “We
have an appointment to see the ambu-
lance driver. We're gonna visit Donald
Turnupseed too. He's the guy that drove
the station wagon that Dean crashed into.
You can’t make an appointment with him

‘though. A lot of people try to do that.

You have to just catch him.”

“You don’t think Dean’s body is
buried down there?” says Breen.

*No, I don’t. He may have been so
badly injured that he’s retarded. You
know, a vegetable. Or maybe it’s a hoax.
Jimmy loved to play jokes.”

“Who do you think is down there?”

“Jimmy Hoffa,” answers a press-
marin. Y

Mrs. M. leaves.

Fans continue to trickle in.

“Hey. Joe, wake up., Liz Taylor is
going to streak the grave.” Joe is propped
up against the tombstone of Hattie Little,
the closest person to Dean since his
death. Like Dean, she is unavailable for
comment. Joe looks up at me, sleepy
eyed. :

“Is it over?” he asks.

“No, but I figured it out. Look, it’s
simple. James Dean is alive on Skorpios
with Jack Kennedy. They’re both vegeta-

",-—....-aﬁiéﬁﬁ'ihe care of Glenn Miller and his

secret bride, Amelia Earhardt. In the

‘Onassis will, a hospital ship was left to
‘provide care for Dean and Kennedy in the
Bermuda Triangle. But Hughes backed -

out for publicity reasons when Randolph
Hearst offered to foot the bill for a trans-
plant of Nixon’s brain into Dean’s body
in exchange for Tania’s freedom.”

Joe closed his eyes. “Wake me up
‘when it’s over.”

Mr, M returns assuring us that the
Germans are window fitters not auto
mechanics, and a tall stocky teenager ap-
pears on the scene. The kid knows one of
Dean’s old girlfriends from Fairmount.

“She’s the one they did that movie
magazine article on, ‘The Girl Who Al-
most Married James Dean.” Every once in
a while I'll talk to Rita about it. By the
time-I get into a good conversation with
her somebody will come along and she’ll
take off. Usually every time I get to talk
to her we just cover the same stuff as last
time. She says Jimmy was fresh! (Laugh-
ter from the crowd), She says he was for-
ward. I remember her saying that. I think
she was out here Memorial Day to see her

‘husband Paul. Paul Smith was a pallbearer

at Jimmy’s funeral. He’s buried right over
here somewhere. Rita’s got letters from
Jimmy, but I guess she put them away
when she married Paul. Her uncle’s sup-
posed to come by for Christmas. He ran
around with Jimmy when they was kids,

so ’m gonna ftalk to him and get some

more information.”

“What happened to her husband?”
I ask.

““Oh, he was killed in a car wreck.”

“Recently?”

“No. 1969.”

“A lot of people in small towns
seem to die in car wrecks. Is there a gas
station here where they tow the cars from

all these accidents? Someplace where

everybody goes Sunday morning to see
the pieces from the night before?”

“They got a Standard station up in
Fairmount where they tow all the wrecks.
I was born in Kentucky, a place called
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Monticello, it’s about the size of Fair-
mount, I guess, and they got down there
what’s called a pump station. They set
the latest wreck out in front and they got.
a great big round cement slab with a sign
that tells how many’s been killed out on
the highways. They set the wreck there,
cross out the old number and everybody
comes to look at the blood and fingers

Cause at the Indiana Theater in Indian-
apolis, and-was immediately hooked. I
started wearing my hair like him, T-shirts
the whole bit. And I wasn’t like that at all
before.”

“What do you think about .this
woman’s theory that Dean is alive?” I ask
pointing to Mrs. M., whose husband is
back talking with the Germans again.

didn’t switch identities with him, which was once a popular belief.

and what not.” :
The press assembles with some fan

around the grave for a group picture.
Dave Honor adjusts his Nikon on a tripod
and sets the timer, “Say James Dean,” he
says pushing the button then running to
join us. Five years later we can all come
back and interview each other, The fifth
anniversary of the 20th anniversary James
Dean Photographers and Interviewers
cluh.

his approval.

“Pve got to take a James Dean
memorial piss,” says somebody.

“What a zoo,” says somebody else.

“We are the zo0o,” says a third
somebody. :

A well-dressed man with a cane is
interviewed. He is a college professor.
{ “There were a lot of celebrities
here for the first memorial service, a lot
of mourning, a lot of crying. Choirs were
singing, wreaths all over the place. Flow-
ers came out twenty feeet from the grave
all the way around. There were a lot of.
teenaged guys and girls with handker-
chiefs out. Natalie Wood was here. Older
people seemed to take it in stride. To the
teenagers it was a maddening mess, and I
was ‘one of them. I followed his career
from the start—saw Rebel Without a

“Well, I believe in that about as
much as I believe in flying saucers.”

“It’s a good thing my husband’s not
here,” says Mrs. M., “he sits on the lawn
for hours looking for them.”

“Look at this one,” a pressman
yells. /A barefooted kid in is meditat-

ing in a shabby lotus pesition in:front of
the grave. Five minutes earlier he’d been
standing around altering his consciousness
with a can of Budweiser. The Nikon mo-

The barefoot meditator does a headstand on Dean’s headstone, while Dean’s ghost gives

tors whirr again as pressmen jockey for
positions. Asked where he is from the
boy replies, “Nowhere, man.” Asked why
he is here, the boy replies, “It’s an acci-
dent.”

A tall skinny redheaded dude is re-
lating his tale of his pilgrimage to the
Winslow home where Ortense Winslow
voiced her displeasure with the David Dal-
ton biography of Jimmy. ‘“Dalton,”
the dude says, “tried to impress her by
sending her a copy of his Janis Joplin bio-
graphy which Mrs. Winslow thought was
trash. Dalton persisted in seeking an inter-
view and eventually got one with Jimmy’s
dad.”

Two women ask a cluster of press-
men if the stories about Jimmy’s poor
personal hygiene and weird sex habits are
true.

At unney
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A man’s voice is heard saying, “Can
you imagine? A thirty eight year old
woman with a scrapbook on a fuckin’ guy
that’s been dead 20 years and I can’t put
a fuckin’ finger on it.”

Another disembodied voice drifts
through the chatter. “Like I don’t know
if he was or not, man, but he must have
been pretty wild.”

“I got a piece of his car,” says an-
other. _

Carole Redus, thirtyish, from Birm-
ingham, Alabama, wearing a James Dean
T-shirt, has been expected. Two of the
bouquets on Jimmy’s grave are from her,

“I started coming here in 1960. I
first came with the president of the James
Dean fan club. And I'm here today be-
cause I love Jimmy, it’s as simple as that.
Now you twist that around like you peo-
ple always do. I'just love to come here,
it’s so peaceful and serene here. I design-
ed the placemat with Jimmy’s picture
that they used to use for a while in this
cafe down here.” ;

Carole takes out her scrap book and
the crowd gathers round.

In the scrap book are pictures of
Carole’s pilgramages throughout Dean-
land—his hometown, the road where he
was killed, the funeral parlour in Califor-
nia where his body was taken after the
wreck, the set locations of the movies,
there are even pictures of her at the Wins-
low farm wearing Jimmy’s motorcycle
jacket, holding his boots, and one or two
with her arms around the Winslows. Car-
ole points to a picture of the headless
Dean monument with a different plaque
than the one it has now. Says Carole, 1
think it’s so outrageous that the fans that
come through here can’t leave something
that’s an enjoyment for everybody, I
mean, it’s just so ridiculous, really. I
don’t understand what motivates them.”

The barefooted meditator is now
doing a headstand on Dean’s headstone,
posing for pictures. He has dropped his
cosmic attitude and revealed himself to
be Richard Campbell of Fayetteville,
Arkansas. Congratulations, Rich, you got
your name in print. Richard falls into the
flowers, : -

Jimmy Dean’s father was here too,
just after Rich did his thing. Nobody no-
ticed him except myself and Carole. Nei-
ther of us gave away his disguise—that of
a camera-toting tourist. There ain’t much
else doing here. Nothing. I wake up Joe
and we go home,

Nothing should be more important
to the artist than life and the living of it.
—James Dean



\WHY 1S THAT CREEP
STARING AT ME
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